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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Malabar Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Malabar Institute of Medical
Sciences Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on
that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of materiai
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS")
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs"} specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Cur responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethicai responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

* The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
informaticn comprises the information included in the Board’'s report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

+« Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

» In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respensibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in deing so, consider whether the other
information 1s materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears tc be materially
misstated.
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« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities:
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, reievant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financiat statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements. )

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the augit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due te fraud or error, design and perform audit precedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinicn. The risk of not detecting a material mrsstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coilusion, forgery,
intentional cmissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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» Obtain an understanding of internai financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and expianations which to the
best of our knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those boaoks.

c) The Balance Sheet, L[he Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the retevant books of
account.
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d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”, Qur report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, as

amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us;

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any materia! foreseeable losses.

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

v, {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the note 43 (e) to the financial
statements, no funds (which are material either individually or in
aggregate) have been advanced or lcaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity{ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like an behaif
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 43 (f) to the financial
statements, no funds (which are material either individually or in
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the
Company during the year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as
applicable.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the
year ended 31 March 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with.

Additionally audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.008072S)

s

/

Ankit.Daga

Partner

{Membership No. 512486)
(UDIN: 25512486BMQOZPP7432)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 14 May 2025



Deloitte
Haskins

& Sells

ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controis with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
l\Actﬂ')

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Malabar Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (the “Company”) as at 31 March 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’'s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidarce Note on Audit of Internal Financiat Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143{(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controts with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based an the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, (ncluding the
assessment of the risks of materiai misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for cur audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Alsa, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial contrels with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the criteria
for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm ‘s Registration No.0080725S)

Ank aga
Partner
(Membership No. 512486)
(UDIN: 25512486BMOZPP7432)
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 14 May 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that;:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right of
use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and
equipment (except leasehold improvements), capital work-in-progress, and
right-of-use assets so to cover all the items in a phased manner over a
period of 2 years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and right-
of-use assets were due for verification during the year and were physically
verified by the management during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

{c) Based on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds of ali the immovable properties of land and
buildings {other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in
the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and
capital work-in-progress are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

Irmmovable properties of Jand and buildings whose title deeds have been
pledged as security for loans are held in the name of the Company based
on the confirmations directly received by us from custadian.

(d} The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
(including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against
the Company as at 31 March 2025 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and
rules made thereunder.

{ii) (a) The inventories were physicaily verified during the year by the Management
at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by the management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its operaticns. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physica
verificaticn of inventories when compared with books of account.
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(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR S crores, in
aggregate, during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of secunty of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns and statements
comprising (stock statements, book debt statements and trade payable)
filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions have
discrepancies in few periods. As per the clarification received from the
lender, the Company is not required to file quarterly returns or statements
with the banks or financial institution w.e.f. 27 January 2025,

(iii) The Company has made investments in, provided and granted unsecured loans, to
companies during the year, in respect of which:

a.

The Company has provided unsecured loans during the year and details of

which are given below:

FPErticul_ars_ B B B Loans (INR crores)

A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during
the year:

} 4
- Fellow Subsidiary 58.57

8

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date:

S — —

- Fellow Subsidiary 58.57

.

The Company has not provided any security or advances in the nature of
loans or stood guarantee during the year.

The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the
loans are, in our opmnion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's
interest.

The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand. During
the year the Company has not demanded such loan. Having regard to the
fact that the repayment of principal or payment of interest has not been
demanded by the Company, in our opmion the repayments of principal
amounts and receipts of interest are regular. {Refer reporting under clause
(i) (f} below).

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed, In respect of loans granted by the Company,
there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet
date.

None of the loans granted by the Company have fallen due during the year.
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f. The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand details of
which are given below:
- = _INR Crores
Particulars Tall Promoters | Related
o __ Parties | _ Parties
Aggregate of loans
- Repayable on demand (A) 58.57 - 58.57
- Agreement does not specify any
terms or period of repayment (B) | | - -
. Total of (A+B) - . 58,57 = | _58.57|
| Percentage of loans to the total
loans B - . 100% | - | 100%
(iv)  The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the

(v)

(vi)

{vii)

Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted and investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed ta be
deposits. Hence reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of healthcare services
rendered. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the
Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as
amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the
Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been
regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us by
the Management, there were no dues payable in respect of Sales Tax, Service
Tax, duty of Excise and Vaiue Added Tax during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services
tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2025, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable,
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(viii)

(ix)

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not

been deposited as on 31 March 2025, on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Statute  Nature = Forum where | Periodtoc | Amount @ Amounts |

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(a)

(e)

{f)

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during
the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed
by the Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the
purpoeses for which the loans were obtained,

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
funds raised on short-term basis have, on prima facie, not been used during
the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any fund frcm any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associate.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the plaedge of
securities held in its subsidiaries cr associate. Tha Company does not have
any joint venture.

of Dues Dispute is which the | Involved remaining
Pending Amount ) unpaid
Relates (INRin  ynpin
(Financial Crores) Crores)
| Year) |
The Employees’ Providen = The Regional PF | 2015-16 T 1.42T 0.94
Provident Funds and t Fund Commissioner, |
Misceilaneous Kozhikode
Provisions Act, 1952
Tncome Tax Act, Income |Income  Tax| 2005-06 0.19 <
1961 tax Appellate
Tribunal
Income Tax Act, Income *Commissioner + 2016-17 * 0.10 ' -
1961 tax of Income Tax
Appeals

—
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

{xv)

{xvi)

(xvil}

(a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

() We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year and upto the date of this report and provided
to us, when performing our audit.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opimion the Company has an adequate interral audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b} We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company
during the year and covering the pertod up to 31 March 2025 and the final
of the internal audit reports 1ssued after the balance sheet date covering the
period 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 for the period under audit.

In our opinion, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with any of its directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary and
associate companies or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions
of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable tc the Company.
The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under ciause (xvi)(a), (b) and {c) of the
Order 1s not applicable.

The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the group
and accordingly reporting under clause {xvi){d) of the Order is nct applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash lesses during the financiai year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year,
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{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the

{xix)

(xx)

year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other informaticn accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based an our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come te our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fail due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring
a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for
the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

\ \}
Ankis\a\.ga

Partner
Membership No. 512486
(UDIN: 25512486BMOZPP7432)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 14 May 2025
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Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025

Allamounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

N . Asat Asat
Lt Culics [ 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Assets
WNon-corrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 775.69 729.06
Right-of-use assets 35 6167 68.64
Capital work-in-progress 4 013 56,04
Qulier intangible assets 5 1.21 1.9
Financial asscts

Invesinents [} 54.94 47.03

Loans 11 58,57 -

Other finangial asscts 12 27.96 28.51
Income ix asscts (aet} 31 4.88 .89
Cther non-gureent assels 13 13.40 15.81
Tutal nen-current assets L7445 947,90
Current assets
Insentories 7 20443 22.57
Financial assets

Trade recesvables 3 20.26 35.94

Cash and cash cyuivalents 9 20.97 47.07

Bank balanees other than cash and cash cquivalents above 1 42.93 2.76

Other financial asscts 12 1116 8.67
Other current assets 13 9.03 7.95
Total current assets 124.78 124,96
Tutal ussets 1.199.23 LU72.86
Equity and liabilitics
Equity
Eqguity shave capital 14 99.91 9991
Other equity s 643.75 35v.54
Tosul Equity 783.66 65945
Non=current liabilities
Finuncial liabilitivs

Borsowiings 16 7741 9586

Luase labilitics 35 7182 6Y.46

Other finaneial liabifitics 13 0.74 0.74
Provisions 1% 14.64 12.57
Delerred tax liabilities {nct) 3 3927 38,31
Otrer non-current liabilities 20 16.03 1590
“Fotal non-current liabilitivs 23991 253.30
Current linbilities
Finaneiat liabilities

Buorrowings 1o 35425 20,83

Lease liabilities 35 347 245

Trade puyables 17

- Total outstanding ducs of micro and small enterprises 3.28 [R5
- Total vutstanding dues of creditors ether than micro and small BEH0 BU.Y6

cnleIpriscs

Other finuncial liabilities 18 3031 3208
Provisions 19 1.94 {80
Other current linbilities 20 12,61 8.58
Total current liabilitics 175.66 16U E1
Tutal equity and liabilitics 1,194.23 1,072.86

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statenents.
As per our report of even date attached
for Deluitte Haskins & Sells Jor and on behalf ot the Board ot Directors
Charivred dccountants - SEHATNCES LIMITED
Firm registration number; B0B0725

e
Mandayap i Azad Moopen U Basier
Chuirman and Managing Dirceror Director

Membership Ne.: 512486 DIN: UG 1549403 DIN: 01482427

Benguturu Pubai Calicut

14 May 2025 14 May 2023 14 May 2025

Radhakrishnsn Allup-.mr;?x 4‘9,. 0)‘;0- 8, R (“

Cunpany Secrefdry 'f{v e/a 8 N
Membership no. ACS 455

id May 2025 Culicut
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
CIN: U851 H0KL1995P1L.C008677

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

In¢ome
Revenue from operations 21 1,118.05 1,014.36
Other income 22 9.63 4.26
Total income 1,127.68 [,018.62
Expenses
Purchases of medicines and medical consumables 23 216.61 211.56
Changes in itventories 24 2.14 5.15
Professional fee to consultant doctors 25 249.63 220,09
Laboratory outsourcing charges 26 36.54 40.85
Employee benefits expense 27 21591 199.47
Finance costs 28 14.79 16.37
Deepreciation and amortisation cxpenses 29 48.42 45.41
Other expenscs 3¢ 166.41 157.29
Total expenses 95045 395,89
Profit before tax 177.23 122.73
Tax cxpense / {benefit) 31

Current tax 41.65 29.01

Deferred tax 1.07 (15.25)
Total tax expense 42.72 13.76
Profit for the period 134.51 108.97
Other comprehensive income
Tems that witl not be reclassified subsequenily to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit lability 0.42) (0.61)
Inceme tax relating to items that will net be reclassified to profit or loss 0.t 0.15
Total other comprehensive income (0.31) {0.46)}
Total comprehensive income Tor the year 134.20 108.51
Earnings per share (equity share of face value of INR 10 each) 33
Basic (In INR) 13.40 10.91
Diluted {In INR) 13.40 10.91
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis MALABAR INSTIT L SCIENCES LIMITED
Firm registsgion number; 0080725 /

.
k
-
. ‘/’

Ankit Aandaya th Azad Moopen U Basheer
Furtner Chairman and Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 512486 DIN: 00159403 DIN: 01482427
Bengaluru s : Dubai Calicut
14 May 2025 14 May 2025 14 May 2023

Calicut
14 May 2625

pXZ

Radhakrishnan Anupama
Cuompuny Secretary
Mermnbership no. ACS 47569
Calicut

14 May 2025



MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED

CIN:UBS1IOKL1I995PLC008677

Statement of changes in equity fur the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Nute Number of equity Angunt
shares

(in crores)
Balunce as at 1 April 2023 9.99 99.91
Changes i equity share capital dusing 2023-24 14 & =
Asat 31 March 2024 9.99 .4
Changes in cquily share capital during 2624-25 14 - -
As at 31 Mareh 2028 9.99 99.91

E. Other eyuity

Particulars

Reserves and surplus (Refer Note 15)

Items of uther comprebensive

income
(Refer Note 15)

Total uther equity
attributable to

Remeasupenent of net defined | ¢quity helders of

Securities preminm | Revaluation resenve | Retained carnings benefit liability/ (asset), net of the Cerapany
tuy
Bulance as at 1 April 2023 8.7 217.64 164.37 0.30 461.02
Prolil for the year B 108,97 = 104,97 |
Other conprehensive ngome fur the year, et of'1ax - - {0.406) {046}
Tutal compreliensive income - L0897 (0.46) L0451
Trunsferred o cedaived varnings - - - -
Dividend paid - 19.99% = {9.99)
Total trangactions recorded directly 10 equity - {999} - 9.99)
Bakinee us ut 31 Morch 2024 .71 217.64 263.35 (0.16) 554,54
Balance a5 at 1 April 2024 78.71 217.04 20).35 {1.10) 554,54
[rofit for the year - - 134.51 - 134.51
Other eomprehensive income for the year, iyet of tax - - - (6.31) (0.3l
“Totul comprehensive income - - 134.51 (0.31) 134.20 |
Transferred to retained earnings - - - - -
| Dividend paidt E : (9.99) 5 (949
“Fotal transactions recorded directly in equity - - (AL S (999
Walance a5 at 31 Murch 2025 78,71 217.64 357.87 047 633.75

The aceempanying notes form an integral part of thesy inancial statements.

As per our report ofeven date atiached,
for DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Feirte?
Maembership No.: 512486
Bengalucy *
14 May 2025
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14 Muy 2025
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Calicut
14 May 2025
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
CIN:U85110KL1995PLC008677

Statement of ¢ash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

Ali amounts m [NR crores, unless otherwise stated

Particulars

For the year ¢nded
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit hefore tax for the year 177.23 122,73
Adijustments for non cash and non aperating Ttems :
Depreciation and amortisation eXpenses 48.42 45.11
Finance costs 14.79 16.37
Dividend on non-current investments (0.55) (0.32)
Interest income and other non-operating income (7.47) (0.93)
Allowances for credit losses on trade receivables and financial assets 1.51 2.52
(Profity¥Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment {net) 0.11 (0.05)
Operating cash flows before movements in werking capital 234.04 185.43
Movements in Working capital
Changes in trade receivables 1512 10.91
Changes in inventories 2.14 515
Changes in other financial assets and other assets (3.94) 283
Changes in trade payables 427 (14.02)
Changes in provisions 1.73 2.37
Changes in other financial lizbilities and other liabilities 4.20 (10.12)
Cash generated from operating activitics 257.56 182.55
Taxes paid, nef of refund received (45.64) (26.80)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 211.92 155.75
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 1.38 0.20
Dividend reccived 0.55 0.32
Payment to acquire property and equipmment and cupital work-in-progress {97.70} (102.07)
Loans given (58.57) -
Proceeds from asset held for sale - 3.08
Restricted bank deposits 1.43 2.11
Tnvestment in Bank Deposits (37.70) -
Investments in subsidiary and other entity (7.89) (13.28)
Proceeds on sale of praperty, plant and equipment (102 1.08
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (198.48) (108.56}
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease Tiabilities (9.15) {9.65)
Dividend paid (9.64) (9.71)
Finance cost paid (10.72) (10.48)
Long ferm secured loan availed 18.97 46.50
Long term secured loan repaid (29.00) (26.53)
Current borrowings (repaid)/availed, net - {13.46)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (39.54) (23.33)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (26.10) 23.86
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 47.07 23.21
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer Note 9) 20.97 47.07
Components of cash and cash cquivalents
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balances with banks 18.98 45.25
Cash on hand 1.99 1.82
Total 20,97 4707




MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
CIN:U85110KL1995PLC008677

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts v INR croses, unless otherwise stated

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2023

Payticulars As at Movement during the year Asat
. Cash i h jti 31 March 2025
1 April 2024 ash inflows Cas Ad!:ht:or.ls! Finance costs
outflows nodifications
- = -
Borrowings (Current and Non 123.39 1897 (39.72) y 10.79 113.43
current) meluding interest
72.81 - (9.15) 5.17 6.46 75.29
Total 196.20 18.97 (48.87) 5.17 17.25 188.72
Changes in labilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars Movement during the year
Asat Cush inflows Cash ditions / .
1 April 2023 . b Ad. Eilons Finance costs 31 March 2024
outflows muditications
Borrowings (Current and Hon- 116.54 46.50 (50.47) - 1052 12339
current) nciuding interest
Lease liabilities 48,18 - (9.65) 28.43 5.85 72.81
Total 165.02 46.50 (60.12) 28.43 16.37 196.20
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
As per our report of even date attached. MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED

for DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 0080725

AnkitRa:
Partner Chairman and Managing Director
Membership No.: 512486 DIN: 00159403
Bengaluru - - Dubai
14 May 2023 %P.S K"NN 14 Muy 2025
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED

Notes to the finaneinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated
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3.2

3.3

Material accounting policies

Pruperty, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Ttems of property, plant and cquipment are measured at cost, which includes cupitatised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accunulated ivmpairment
losses, if any.

Cost of an jtem of property, plant and eyuipment comprises its purchase price, including impart dutics and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, any dircetly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and cquipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing
the item to working condition for its intended use. and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant wid equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as scporate items (mujor compuonents) of
properly, plant and equipnent.,

Any gain ur loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recopaised in the statement of profit and luss.

Advances paid lowards the acquisition of property, plant and cquipment, outstanding at cach balance sheet date are shown under ther non-current asscts. The cost of
property, plant and cquipment not ready for its intended use at cach balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-prognss.

ii. Subseguent expenditure and derecognition

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Compuny.

An item of properly, plant and equipment is derecognised upon dispesal or when no fulure ceenuimie benelits are expected 1o arse from the continued use of the
assel. The gain or loss arising en the disposal or retirement of an usset is determined us the dillerence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assct and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

iii. Depreciativn

Deprecrdion on property, plant and equipment are provided on the straight-line method aver the useful lives of the ussets estimated by the Management. Depreciation
for assets purchased / sold during a period is proportionately charged. Leaschold unprovements are amortized vver the lease term or useful lives of assels, whichever
is lower, The estimated usetul Lives of items of property, ptant and cguipment for the current and comparative years are as fullows:

Cluss of asseis Usebul life {in yeurs)
Buildings ]

Plant and equipment (including cleetrical equipmcents} 16-15

Medical cquiprent® 10-13

Vehigles * 5

Computer cquipment (inchading servers and networks) 36

Furniture und fixiores * 5-19

Qffice cquipiments 5

* For the 2buve-mentioned elasses of assets, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the uselul Lives of these assets based on internal
assessment and supported by technical adviee, where necessary, witich i different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part € of Schedule £ of the Compinices
Act, 2013

Depreciation methed, usctul lives and residual values are reviewed at each finuncial year-end and adjusted it appropriate.

iv. Cupita] work-in-progress

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant und equipment vutstanding as of cach reporting dute ure recognized as capital advance and the cost of
property. plant and cquipient not ready for intended use before such date are disclused under capitul work- in-proyress.

Commencenent of Pepreciation selaled to property, plant and cquipment classiticd as Capital work in progeess (CWIP) involves determining when the assets are
available for their intended use. The criteriy the Company uses tu determine whether CWID are weailuble for their infended use invalves subjective judgments and
assumplions about the conditions necessary for the assets to be capable of operating W the intended manner.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acyuired sepuzately an aceumulated amortisation und secumulated impainnent losses. Intangible
assets are amurtised ever their respective individual estimated useful lives on @ straight-line basis, commencing from the dule the asset is wvallable to the Company lor
its Use and is included in depreciation and nmortisation expenses in the statement of profit and luss, The estinated uselul e and amortisption methuod are revivwed at
the cnd of cach reporting period, with the effect of any changes i estimate being secounted for on a prospective basis.

carricd ut eost less

The estimated uselul lives are as fullows:

Cluss ol assets Uselul lie (in yeurs}

Compiter software 1]

The estimated uschul life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a nmber of fuctors including the ctfects of vhsotescence, demand, competitien and vther
ceonumic factors (such as the stability of the industry und known technatugieal advanees) and the level of maintenance expeinditures required te obtain the expevted
tuture cash flows from the assct.

Subscquent expenditute is capitatised onty when it increases the future cconomic benefits embodied in the specitic asset to wiuch it relutes. All other cxpenditune is
secognised in the statement of profit and Joss as ingurred.

An intangible asset is dereeognised on disposal, or when no Future economic benelils are expected from use of disposal. gains or fosses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measared as lhe ditference belween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asse. ure revognised in the stement of prolit and
loss when the asset is derecognised.

Ioventuries

Inventesics are measured at the lower of cust and net reulisuble value. The cost of inventories comprises purchuse price, and other cust incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present focution and condition. The Compuny tses the welghted average method (o determine the cost of inventory vonsisting of medicines and
medical consumables,

Net realisuble value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary 10 make te sale. The comparison of cust and
et realisable values is made on an item-by-item basis.
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OQF MEDICAL $CIENCES LIMITED

Notes to the financisd statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR crores, unless othernwiss stated

34

3.5

Impairment

i. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for cxpeeted eredit losses ('ECL') on fimneinl asscts measured at amortised cost.

Al cach reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial asscts eurricd at amortised cost are credit impaired. A firancial asset is “credit impaired” when ong or
maore events that have a detrimental impact on the estinmuted future cash flows of the finuncial asset ave occurred.

The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount cgual to lifetime ECL. The expected credit Jesses on trade receivables are
estimaled using a proviston matcix by reference to past default experience of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors' current financial position, adjusted for factors
that are specific 1o the debtors, general cconamic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessiment of buth the current as weil s the Toreeast
gdicection of conditions at the reporting date.

fr1 il cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit
risk.

Measurement of expected credit lusses

Expected credit losses are a probubility weighted estimate of credit tosses. Credit isses are measured as the present value of ull cash shortfalls ¢i.e. the difference
between the cash flows duc 1o the Company in accordunce with the coniract and the cush flows thut the Compuny expeets te reecive)

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet:

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gruss carrying amount of The assets.

Write-off’

The gross carrying amount of a financial assel is written ofF (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery, This is generally the
case when the Compuny determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate suflicient cush [lews to repity the ameunts subject (o
the write ofl.

ji. [mpairment of non- linancial assets
The Company's non-finaneial assels, other than {nventories and deforred tax asscls, ae reviewed at each repurting date to determing wiether there s any indication
of impairment. 1 any such indication exists, then the assel’s recoverable umount is estimated to determing Lhe extent of impainnent luss, iCany.

For impainment testing, asscts tiat de not gencrate independent cosh inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Fach CGU represents the
smallest group of assets that gencrates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows ob other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGY {or an individual asset) is the higher of ity value in use and its fair value less costs 1o seil, Vaiue in use is based on the estimated
futire cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects eurreni markel assessments of the time value of money and the nsks
specific to the CGU (or the asset).

Intangible assets and property, plant and cquipment ate evaiuated for recovernbility whenever cvents of changes in circumstances Inclicate that their currying amounts
niy not be recoverable, Far the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount e, the higher of the fwir vilue less cost 10 sell and the valug-in-use is
determined on s individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that arc largely independent of these frum other ussets. In such cases. the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

1§ such asscts are considered to be impaired, the impairnent to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured by the amuunt by which the camying
value of the assels exceeds the estonated recoverable amount of the asset.

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used 16 determing the resoverable amount. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount dous not exceed the carrying amount that world have been determined
(net of any accumutated anortization or dep ciation} had ne impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Employec benelits

Short-term employee bengfits

Employee benvtits payable whully within twelve menths of receiving employee servives are classified as short-term employee benetits, These buenctits include
sukarics and wages, bonus and ex-gealia. Short-lerm empluyes benefit ubligations are measured on wi undiscounted busis und are expensed us the related serviee 15
provided. A liability is recognisud for the umount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, If the Company has 8 present legul or constreeive obligation
to ay his amount as & result of past service providid by the employee and the amount of ebligation can be estinnated reliably.

Post-cmployment beqcfits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-cmployment benefit plaa under which an entity pays fixed contributions and will have no fegal or constructive obligation o pay
further amounts, The Company makes specilied monthly contiibutions towards Government administered provident fund scheme, Obligations for centributions
defined contibution plans are recognised us an cmployee benefil expense in the statenwent of profit and loss in the periods during which the related services e
rendered by employees.

Defined bencfit plans

Under a detined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits te the employees
The caleulation of defined benefit obligation is pestenmed annually by 2 qquialified actuary usmg the projected unit credit method.

Re-measuremeits of e net defined benefit liability, which compiise actigerial gains and losses are recagnised in vther comprehensive income (OC1y m the period m
which they oveur. Remeasurements of the net defined beacit lisbility/(asset) recogaised in olher comprehensive inveme shall not be reclassified to statement of profit
and loss in a subsequent period. However, the Company transfers those smounts recegnised in other comprehensive inconme within equity, The Company determines
thg et interest cxpense en the nel defined benefit liability for the period by appkying the discount rate uscd to measure the defined benelil obligation at the beginning
of the anmual pericd to the then-net defined benetit lability, taking into account any changes in the net defined bernetit liability during the period as o result of
contributions and benesit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses reluted 10 detined benetit plans are recopnised in stateent of profitand loss

Provisions (¢ther than cinployee benefits)

A provision s recognised if, as a result of u past event, the Company has a present legul or constraviive abligation thut can be estimated reliably, snd it is probable
that an cutflow of economic benetits will be required to settle he ubiiggation. ‘The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of 1he consideration required
1o seille the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertinties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the preseat obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effcct of the time value of muney is
material).

A contract is vonsidered 1o be unerous when the expected evonomic benetits to be derlved by the Company Erom the contract are fuwer than the unavoidable cost of
meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an gnetous contret is peasured at e present value of the lower of the expected cost of tenminating the
contract and the expected net cost of continuing wih the vontract. Belure such a provision is made, the Company recogases any impairment loss on the asseis
associated with that contract.
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MALABAR INSTITUTE, OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED

Notes to the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 Murch 2025
All amounts in INR crores, unless othenviss stated

3.7
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Revenue

Revenue from contract with customers

The Company gencrates reveaue fiom rendering of hospitul services (hospital and medical services). sevenue from sale of pharimacy and other operating ingome. Ind
AS 115. Revenuc from Conteacts with Customers ("[ndAS 115"), establishes u comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. Under ind AS 115, revenue is recognised when a customer obtuing contrel of the poods or services in un yumount that refleets the consideration which the
Company expecls te receive in exchange for those preducts or scrvices. Tn calulating the variable considerutions, the Company considers the e and coverage
through insurance and other partics, the history of adjustinents and rejections, and the probability of rejections. discounts, rebates, price congessions, or other similar
items.

Disaggregation of revemie

The Company disagpregates revenue from hospital services (hospitat and medical services), revenug of pharmacy and other operating income, The company further
disaggregates revenue from hospital and medical services based on category of customers (cush and credit) and based on pature of treatment (In-patient and Out-
patient). The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and cerlainty of Company’s revenues and cash flows are affected
by industry, market and other cconomic factors,

Canrract balances

The Compuny classifics the right to cunsideration in exchange {or sale of services where invoice is raised as trade receivables, where inveice bas net been raised as
unbiiled revenne and sdvanee consideration as advance from customers.

Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a cuntract with & customer. The Company recopnises revenue when it tanslors eontrol over a good wr
service (o § customer i.e. at the transaction price when cach performance obligation is satisfied a1 2 puint in time when inpatientoutpatients has actually received the
service except for few services where the performance obligation is satisficd over a period of time. The following details provide information about the nature and
timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue reeegnition pelicics.

(&) Revenue from hospital and medival services

The Comgpany’s revenue from hospital and medical services cumprises of ingome [rom hospital services.

Revenue fram hosgital services to patients Is tecognised us revenue when the related services are rendered unless significant future uacertainties exist. Revenue is
also recognised in relation to the services rendered to the patients who are undergeing treatment/ obscrvilion un the bulanee sheet date to the extent of the services
rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts, concessions given to the patients and ¢stimated disallowances for patients covered under insurance.

Unbilied receivable represents value to the extent of hespital and medical serviees are rendered to the patients who are underguing treatment/observation on the
paiance sheet dale and is not billed as at the balance sheet date.

(b} Reveaiwe from sale of pharmacy

Revenue from sale of pharmacy within the hospital premuses is recognised when the control in the goods are transferred to the customer and no significant uncertiinty
exists Tegarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the gouds and regarding its collection. The amount of revenue recognized is net
of sales returns, faxcs and dutics, wherever applicable,

(c) Other operating income

The Company’s revenue from other vperating income comprises primarily of revenue from medical courses conducted at the hospital, revenue from consultancy
services and rental income.

Revenue from services rendered is based on the agreementsiarrangements with the customers as the servive is perfurmed.

Furcign currency trunsactions

Transactions in foreign currencics sre translated Iito the functionl currency of the Compuny at the exehange ates at the dates ol the transaetions or an average fate it
the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transuction,

Monelary asse

wnd Babilities denominated in foreign currencics are tanslated into e functional curreacy at the exchange rate at the repurting date. Non-monelary
and liabilities that are measteed at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the cxchange rite when the fair value was
determined. Noo-monetary assets and Lisbilities that are measured based on historical cost in a fureipn cuerency are translated ab the exchange vty at the date ol the
transaclion. Exchunge differences are recognised in statement of profit und loss.

asse

Leases

Determining whether an arrangemcnt cuntains o lease

Al inception of an arrangement, is determined whether the arrangement is or containg a lease, At ingeption or on reussessnient of the arrangement that contains o
Yease, the payments and olher considerstion sequired by such an arangement are separaled into those for the lease and those for other clements on the basis of their
relative fir values,

i. Company as a lessee

The Company aeeounts for cacll Jease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease conponents of the contract ang allocales the vonsideration
in the contract to cach lease component on the basis of the refative stand-alune price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-atone prive of the non-lease
components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to usc the underlying asset for the tease term at the lease commencement date. The vost of the right
of-usc asset measured at inception shall comprisc of the amount of the initisl Weusurement of the fease liability adjusted fur any icase payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any iritial dircct costs inewred and an estimate of ¢osts to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset oF site on wirich it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less ay
accumuluted depreciatiun, aceunlated impaiement losses, if any amd adjusted fur any remeasurement of the Jeuse Hubiluy. The right-of-use assets iy depreciated
using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life uf righi-of-use assel. The estimated usefl hves of nght-vl-use
assets are delermined on the siume basis as those of property, plant und equipment. Right-of-use assets ure tested for impuirment whenever there is any ndication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impoirment loss, if any, is recopnised in the statement of protitand loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are aot paid at the commencemment date of the Jease The kease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rte can be readily determined. [T that cate canngt be readily delermined, the Company uses invremental
burrowing rate. The lease payments shali inchude fixed paynients, variable lease payments hit depend v an index or rate, initially measured vsing the index or rate ut
the commencement date, residual value guarantees, exercise prive of a purelase uptivn where the Company is reasenably certain w exercise that option and payments
of penalties fur terminating the lesse, if the lease term reflocts the lessee exercising an option (o terminate the kase. The lease liability is subsequently temessured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest vn the lease liability, reducing the carrying umount W reflect the lease puymeits made and reweusuiing the currying
amuunt to reflect any reassessment or lease modificativns or W reflect revised in-substunce fixed lease payments. The Company recoginses the amount of the re-
measurement of lease liability due to modification us an adjusiment to the right-uf-use usset and statenent of profit and luss depending upon the nature of
modiffcation. Whese fhe varcying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced 1o zero and there is o further reduction in the measwenwent of the fease lability. the
Company recognises any remnining ameunt of the re-medsurement in staterment of profit and luss.

Variable toats that do not depend on an index or rte are not included In the measurement of the lease liability and the right-ot-use asset.
recognised us an expense in the period ia which the event o condition that triggers those paynwnts ogenrs and are included in the lin
statement ot profit and loss.
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Leases {continued)

il. Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classitics each of its leuses s cilher an operating lease or a finance fcuse. Whenever the terms of the leuse transter
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract Is classificd as 4 finunce lease. All atier leases are classified as operating leases. The
Company recogniscs lease payments received under operating leases as inceme on 2 straight- kine basis ever the lease term. [n case of a finance lease, finance income
is recognised over the lease term based on a pattem refecting a constant periodic rate of return on the Lessor's net investment in the lease,

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net investment in the leases. When the Company is an
interniediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately, It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use assct arising from the e lease, ot with reference to the underlying assct. If @ hend loase i a short-term lease o which the Company applics the
exemption described above, then it classifics the sub-leuse as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains Lease and non-lease cemponcnts, the Compuny applies Ind AS ) 15 Revenue from contracts with customers W allocate the considerution in
the contragt.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or interest expense

(a) Dividend income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date on whicl the right to reecive payment is established.

(b} Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognized using the time proportivnale methed, pased on the fransactional mterest rates.

(¢) Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest metliod.

The ‘elfective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected |ife of the financiul instrument to he
gross carrying amount of e financtal asset or the umortised cost of the fiancial liability.

In calculating interest incame and cxpense, the etficetive interest rate is applivd to the gross carrying amount of the asset {when the asset is not eredis-impaired) or to
the amortised cost of the liability.

Inconw tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recogrised in the statement of profit and loss excepl 1o the extent that it reates o an item recognised directly in
equily vr in other comprehensive income.

i Current tax

Cursent kax comprises the expected tax puyable of receiville on the taxable income or toss fur the year and any adjustment to the tax payuble or receivable in rgspect
af previvus years. The amount of current tax reflects the bust estimate of the tax smount wxpected to be paid or reveived after considering Lhe nscertunty, if any.
celated t income taxes. 1t is measured using tux saies (and tax laws) enacted ur substantively cnacled by she reporting date,

Cursent tax assets and varrent tax lisbilities aze offset only if there is a legally entorceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and 1is inteaded o realise the
asset and selly the Liability on a net basis or simuitancousty.

A provision is recognised for those matters For which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered probable that there will be o future outflow of funds te a
tax anthority. The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount expucted to become payuble. The assessment iy bused on the judgement of tax
professionals within the Company supported by previous experience in respect of such aclivitics und in certain cuses bused an speeialist independent tx advice.

ii. Deferped tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of tempeorary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for finuneial reporting purpuses and the
corresponding tax buses used for twxation pusposcs. Dicterred tax assets are secugnised for earry forward of umused tax fosses ind tax credits o the extent that it s
probubly that futare taxable profit will be availuble aguinst which such Tosses and vredits van be ulibsed. Defernad tax A5 ure recognised 1o the extent that it s
probable that future taxuble profits will be wvailable against which they can be utilised. The existenve of unused tux losses is strong cvidence that futare laxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of @ history of reeent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only & the exienl that it has sutlivient taxable
tempurary differenees or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient usabie profit will be available aguinst which such deferied tax asset can be realised
Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, ass seviewed ot caeh reporting date and are recognised/ redueed 10 the extent that it is probable? no longer probuble
respectively that the related tax bencfit will be realdised.

Deferred tax is meusieed ut the Wx rates that are expected o apply o the puriod when the asset is realised or the liubility is setlled, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting dute. The measurcient of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would fullow from the nwmasr s which
the Compuny cxpects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amwunt of its assets and fiabilitics.

Deferred tax assets and Liabilitics are offset if there is o legaily cnforeeable tight to offset current tax libilities and assets, and they relute o income taxes fevied by
the sumge tax authority on the sane taxable entity, or on different tax cnfitics, bul they intend o seitle current tax Liabilitics and assets un o net basis or lheir tax assels
and tiabililies will be reabised simultancously.

Burrowings and berrowing custs

Horrowings are recogaised initially at faie value, net of trmsaction costs incurred. Burrowings are subseeguently stated at amortised cost. Any difterence between the
proceads {net of tramsaction cosis) and the fedemption value is recogised in the statement of protit and fuss over the period of the borrowings using tie effective
interest rate method, Borrowings are classiticd as current liabilitics unless the Company has an unconditional right 1o deler settlement of the liability lor at least 12
maonths after the reporiing date.

Borrowiag costs are interest and other costs (inchuding exchange differences relating to fureign currency berrowings w the extent that they are repanded as an
adjustment L interest costs) incurred in connection with the botrowing of lunds, Borrowing costs directly attributable t acquisition or constiugtion of an asset which
necessarily take a substamtial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capilalised as part of the vost of (hat asset until such time as the asset (5
substantially ready for their intended use of sale, Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the perwd in wiuch they are sneurced.
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Notes to the finuncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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3.13 Financial instruments
i, Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt secusitics issued are initially recognised when they ace origirated. All other finuncial assets and financial liabilitics arc imtially recognised
when the Company becowmes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset or financial liability is initially mcasured at fair value, except tor trade receivables that do not have a significant financing compuonent which are
measurcd at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly atlribwtabic to the agquisition or issuc of financial assets and financial liabitities (other than financial
assels and financial liabilitics at fair value through profit of loss - FVTPL) arc added to or deducted trom the fair value of the financial assets or financial ligbilitics.
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transactien costs dircetly attribatable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair vatue through profit or
loss are reeognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Classifieation and subsequent measureient

Finunuid assets

On initiut recognition, a financial asset is classified as cither at amertised cost, fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive
ingome {FYOCI).

Financial assets arc not reelassified subscquent to thelr initiol recopnition. except if and in the period the Company chunges its business medel for manaying financial
asscls.

A financial asset is measwred at amortised cust if it meets buth of the following conditions:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on speeified dates to cash Hows that are solely payments of prineipal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

On initial recognition of an cquity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may ir ably cleet 1o present sudsequent chenges i the investment’s fuir
value in OCI {designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on sn investment-by-investment basis.

All finuneial assets not classified as meusured at amertised cost or FYOCI as desvribed above are measured at FVTPL. This includes ull derivative financial asscs.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financiul asset thal olherwise meets the requirements to be measured ul amartised cost or at FVOCI
as al FVTPL (f deing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would vlherwise asise.

Finaneial assets: Business nodel assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a finanvial asset is held at investment level because this best refloets the way the
business is managed and infonmation is provided to management, The infermation considered includes:

- the stated policics and ebjectives for cach of such investments and the operation of these policies in practice. These include whether Management's strategy focuses
on carning contractual interest income, muintyining a particular intercst rate profile, mutehing the duration of the finunciul sssets 1 the duration ol uny relited
liabilitics vr expected cash vuttlows or realising cush flows through the sale of the ussets,

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets feld within that business model) and how thoese risks are managed;

+ the freguency, velume and tining of sales of financial assets in prior perivds, the reasons for sueh sales and expectations abour fature sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third partics in transactions that do not quality for derecognition are not considered sales fur this purpose, congistent with the
Company's continuing recognition of 1he assets.

Financial assets that are hetd For wading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured ar FYTPL.

Financial ussers: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely pavments of principal and interest

For the purposcs of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the Faic value of the finaneial asset on fnitial recopaition. *lnolerest’ is defined as considleration for the
time value of moncy and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount vustanding during u particular perivd of Time and for vther basic lending risks and
costs {c.g., liguidity risk and administrative vosts), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whetlier the contractual cash flows are solely payments of pringipal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset cuntaing a contractual teem that could hange the timing or smount of contractial cash Nows sach that it weuld not meet
this cendition. fa misking lhis assessnwent, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timang of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupen rate, including variable interest rute feutures;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- tezms it Jimit the Company’s claim to cush flows from specitied assets (¢.g., non-recourse features),

Finaneial assets: Subsequent measurement aird geing and Lisses
Finaneial assels at FVTPL These axsels e subseguently measured at fair vaiug, Not guing and losses, including)
any interest or dividennd income, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Finungial assets at amortised cost These ussels are subsequently nwasured ot smortised cost using the elleetive interost
method. The amortised west s reduced by impairment lusses. Interest income, loreign
exchunge gains and losses and impalrment sre recugnised in statement profit and loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is reeognisvdt in statement of profit and loss.

Equity invesiments at FVOCE These assels are supsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are recognised as
Tncome in statement protit and luss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are weeognised in GCl and
are not reelassitied w statement of profit and loss

Financiai liabilities: Clossification, subseqrent meastresient and gains and lossey

Finanewl liabilities are clossified as measused at amortised cost or FYTPL. A financial lizbility is classified us EYTPL of it is chesified us held for trading. or it s &
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recopnition. Financial lisbilities ot FYTPL are meusured at fuir vatue and net gains and losses, ineluding any interest
expense, are recogaised in statement of profit and loss.

Other financiat liabilities are subsequently meastred at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Inteiest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in statement of profit and luss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recogaised in stuatemg ¥ Al
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Financial instruments (continued)

. Derccognition

Finaucial assels

The Company derecognises « financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire. or it transfers the rights 1o receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substuntially alf of the risks und rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Compuny
neither transters nor retains substantialiy all of the risks and rewards of ownership and docs net retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfurs assets recognised on its balanee sheet, but retains either all or substantially oll of the risks and rewards of
the transferred assels, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial Habilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial
liability when its terms arc modified and the cash flows under the modificd tenms are substantiully different. In this cuse, a new financiai liability bused on the
madified terms is recopnised ut fsic value. The difference between the carrying wnount of the financial liability extinguished and the new fimancial lability with
nodificd terms is recognised in statement of profitund loss.

iv, Ofselting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currenily has o Jegally
enforceable right lo set off the amounts aad it intends either (o settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and sewle the liability simultanegusly.

v. Derivative financial lustrwinents
The Company holds derivative financial instruments 10 hedpg its foreign currency end interest rate risk exposures. Derivatives are inftially measured at Bur value.
Subscquent o initial eccognition, derivatives ave measured at Tair value, and chinges therein arg recognised in statement of profitand loss.

Earnings / (Luss} per share

The basic carnings / (loss) per share ("EPS') is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to cquity sharcholders by the weighted
average number of vyuity shares outstunding during the year.

Driluted carings per share is computed by dividing the profit{loss} after tax (including the post tax et of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend,
jnterest and other charges to expense or incame (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of
cquily sharcs considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of
all dilutive potential cquity sharcs.

Dritulive potential equity sharcs are decmed converted s of the beginning of the period uniess issued at o later date. In computing dilutive earnings per share, only
potential equity sharcs that are dilutive, i.c., which reduces curnings per share or increases loss per share are included. The dilutive potentisl cquity shares arg
udjusted for (e proceeds recevable had the shares been uctualiy issued at fuir value {i.c. average ket value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive putential equity
shares are determined indepeademly for euch period presented. The number of cquity shures and potentially dilutive cquity shares are adjusied lor share splits/reverse
share splits and bonus shares, as appropriatc.

Cash-flow siatenwnt

Cash flows are reposied using the indiccet methed, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the offects of transactions of o nen-vash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipls or payments. The cash flows fom regubar revenue gencrating, investing and financing activitics of the Company are
segregated.

Noun-current assets classified s held-for-sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups clussiticd as hekd for sale are measured at the lawer of their carvying vidue and fiuir value less costs o sell

Assets and disposul groups ave clussified as held for sale i their carrying value will be recovered through a sale tunsaction rather than trough continuing use. This
condition is unly wet when lie sale i3 highly probable and the ssset, or dispusal group, is available for immediate sale in its present gondition wnd is marketed for sale
at 4 prive that is reasonzble in relution o its current faic value, The Compuny must also be conumitted to the sale, which should be expected w qualdify for recogniion
us & cumpleled sale within one year fron: the date of elussitivation,

Whete u disposal group represents a separate major line of business or geographival area of operations, or is part of a single co-urdinated plan to dispose ot o separate
nxjur linc of business or geographical area of operations, then it is treated as a discuntinued operation. The post-tax protit or luss of the discontinued operation
togelher with the gain or loss recognised on its dispesal arc disclosed as o single ameunt i the stteoent of profit and luss, The comparative statement of prolit sed
loss 15 re-presented as if the opecation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative peciad.

Govgroment grants

Guvernment grants are recogaised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complicd with. Where the
Company Teceives grants reluting to asscls, including non-menctary grants, the asset and the related grants arg aveounied at fair value and recognised in the stateanent
of profit and loss over the expected usetud life of the asset. Government grants related to assels, ineluding non-monctiry grants at fair salue, shall be presented in the
bulance sheet by setting up the grant as deferred income. The grant set up us defenved income js recognised in profit or Juss on u systematic busis over tie useful life
of the asset,

Cush and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-tenn deposits with an original maturity ol three months or less which are subjmat 1o
insigniticant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 “Operating Scgment™ (“Ind AS 108™) establishes stundards for the way that public business enterprises report information about uperating segments and
related disclusures abuut products and serviees, geogruphic areas, und major customers. Based on the "management upproach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating
segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided te the Chief Operating Decision Muker (CODM). The CODM evaluates the
Company'’s performance and allovates resources on overall busis. The Company’s sole operaling segment is therefore Mudical und Healtbeare Seivices”

Operating cycle

The uperating cyete is the time between the acquisition of asseis for processing and their ealisation in eash and eash cquivalenss, Based on the natare of produsts

activitivs of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation ia cash of ¢ afents, the Company has deteemined s

operating eyche as 12 months for the purpese of classiftvation of its ussets and labilities as current and non-cQeecip L OF P,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

4 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (continued)
4.2 Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)
4.2.1 Ageing schedule of CWIP

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than I year 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3
years
Balance as at 31 March 2025
Projects in progress 44.09 18.73 5.83 1.48 70.13
Total 44,69 18.73 5.83 1.48 70.13

Balance as at 31 March 2024
Projects in progress 46.40 7.89 1,75 - 56.04
Total 46.40 7.89 1.75 - 56.04

4,2.2 As on the date of the balance sheet, there are no capital work-in-progress projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded the cost compared to its
revised plan.

5 Intangibles assets

Particulars Computer
software

Gross carrying value

Balance as at | April 2023 5.80
Additions 0.06
Disposals -
Balunce as at 31 March 2024 592
Balance as at | April 2024 592
Additions 0.03
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 5.95

Accumulated amortisation

Balunce as at | April 2023 3.24
Amortisation Tor the year 0.78
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4.U2
Balance as at | April 2024 4.02
Amortisation for the year 0.72
Balance as at 31 March 2025 4.74
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2025 1.21
As at 31 March 2024 194
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Notes to the financial staterents for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

8.1

8.2

8.3

Investiments

Particulars As at
31 March 2025

Ay at
31 March 2024

Nen-current investments, unquoted

Investments in equity instriments of asseciates (al vost

Investment in MIMS Infrastructure and Properties Private Limited

66,17,401 (31 March 2024 - 66,17,401 ) equity shares of INR.10 gach fully paid up 6.62

Tnvestments in Nou-cumalative Redvemable Preference Shares of associates (at cost)
Investment in MIMS [nfastructure and Propertics Private Limited 2.67
26,73,274 (31 March 2024 - 26,73,274) preference shares of INR.10 each fully paid up

Ivestarents in equity instrumenis of subsidiaries (at cost)

Tnvestment in Ezhimala Infrastructure LLP G.25
99.49% of (he total capital amounting to INR 9,25,40,000 (31 March 2024 - 99.93%% of the total

capital amounting to INR 9,25,40,000}

Investment in Cantown Infra Developers LLP 24.51
99 99% of the total capital amounting to INR 24,50,79,772 (31 March 2024 - 99.99% of the total
capital amounting to INR 15,22,79,772)

Investments in equity istruments, unguoted at fuir vaiue throngh profic or loss (FYTPL J
Investment in U-Solur Asset Co Two Private Limited 11.89
10,210 (31 Masch 2024 - 5,210) equity shares of INR.IC each

2.67

9.25

24.51

5494

47.05

Inventories

Particulars Asat
31 Muarch 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

(Yalued at lower af cast or net realisable value)

Medicines und medical conswnables 20.43 22.57
Tutal 20.43 22.57
For details of inventories pledged, Tetfer Nute 0.

Trade reccivables

Purticulars Asat As ut

31 Murch 2025

31 March 2034

Current (Unsecured)

Considered good- unsecured 30.53 45.035
Less: Loss allowance (10.27) (9.71)
Net trade receivables 20.26 3594
For detuils of trade receivables pledged, refer Note 16.
The Company's exposure to credit and currency Tisks and luss allowanees related w trade receivables are disclosed in Note 38.
Trade receivables ageing schedule
Particulars As at Asat

31 Murch 2025

31 March 2024

Undisputed trade receivables- considered good, unsecured
Outstanding for following periods from due dute of payment

Not due 873 15.55
Less than 6 months 7.40 12.72
6 months - | yeur 3.5y ERIY
1.2 years 3.24 4.35
2-3 years 1.98 522
More than 3 years 5.59 4.65
Total 30.53 45.65
Luss allowanee provision mafrix- default rates applied at each reporting date
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Due date to | yeur 3% tu 24%0 A% o 37%
1-2 yeurs 55% to (4% 44% to 50%
Mure than 2 years 100% 1430%
Movement of loss allowance
Particulars As at Asal
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance ai the beginning of the yeas 471 7.19
Add: Provision of loss allowance created during the year 050 2.52

Bulwee af the end of the year

10.27

9.71




MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

9

10

11

12

13

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

Balances with banks

-0n current accounts 16,98 10.20
-Depusits with original maturity of less than three months 2.00 35.05
Cash on hand 1.99 1.82
Total 20.97 47.07
Other bank balanees
Yarticulars Asat Ay at
31 hareh 2025 31 March 2024
Balange in banks for margin money* 5.84 2.76
In deposit accounts (with original maturity of more than 3 monihs but less than 12 months) 37.09 -
Total ’ 4293 2.76
* ‘e above deposils are restrictive as it relates to deposils against bank guarantees and letters of credit.
Loans
Particulars As at As at

31 Muareh 2025

31 March 2024

Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Measured af amoriised cost

Dues from related parties (refer Note 37) 58.57

Total 58,57 -
Otlier financial assets

Particulars As at As at

31 Murch 2025

31 March 2024

Nun-current

Unsecured, considered good

Fixed deposits with banks **

Interest aceruad on fixed deposits with banks

Interest acerued on loans to related parties (refier Note 37}
Rent and other deposits™®

Unsecured, considered doubtfil

Rent und other deposits ¥

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables
Total

Current

Unsecured, considered good

Interest acerued on fixed deposits with banks
Unbilled receivables *

Rent and other deposits *

Dues from related parties {refer Note 37)
Total

Tutal

~ Net of advances from patients of INR 2.71 crores (31 March 2024 5.65 crores)

#Includes deposits with relsted party (refer Note 37).

818 1208
2.53 -
237 .
1488 16.43
0.95 .
(0.95) .
2796 28,51
173 2.45
5.04 5.09
156 513
2.53 :
1116 8.67
39.02 N

3718

) eludes deposits worth INR 7.57 crores that are maintained against guarantees issted by Banks and are restricted for perivds excecding 12 months

as at the Balance Sheet date.

Other assets

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

Nun-current

Prepaid expenses

Advances for capital goods

Total

Current

Prepaid expenses

Balance with government authorities
Advance for supply of goods and services
Total

Total —
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0.95 0.76
12.45 15.05
13.40 15.41

4.9% 4.91

0.4% -

3.57 3.04

4,03 1.95
22.43

23.76



MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statentents for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

14 Equity share capital

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 Murch 2024
Number of shures Amuount Number of shares Amount
(in €rores) {in crures)
Authorised
Equity shares of INR [0 cach 10,00 10090 19.06 100,00
Tutal 10,90 144,00 10.00 IRV
e e
1ssued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Exuity shures of INR 10 each 92.99 99.91 999 9991
Tolal 9.9% 9091 ¢.99 99.91
" e .

Hefor Notes () to (i) below,

(a} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equily shares
The Company has a single class of squity shares. All cquity shares rank equally with repard to dividends and share in the Company's resicdual ussets. The cyuily shares are
entitled te regeive dividend us destred fiwm time to time, The voting rights of wn equity shureholder on a pofl (not on show of hands) arc in proportion  sharchulders” shure
of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Vating rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any gall ur other sunis prosently payable have nol been paid.
Faliure to pay uny amount called up on shares may lead 1o forfeiture of shares.
ng up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be emtitled to receive the ndual assets of the Company, remuming atter distribution ot ull preferential
amounts in proportion to the namber of equity shares held.
(bl Reconciliation of shares guistanding at the Deginning und ai the end of the reporting wrivd
Parlivuars Asaf 3 March 2025 As ut 31 March 2024
Number of shaves Amuount Numbper o shures Awmnount
{in crores) {in ¢ryzus)
9.99 gyl .99 H4.91
Tssue of equity shares - - = -
Butunce as at the end of the year 9.99 9491 $.99 4491
{¢} Shares lield by ultimate bolding company
Parliculars As 5031 March 2025 Asat 3l March 2024
Number of shares Amuount Nuniber of shares Amgun(
__tincrores) (in crores)
Equity shares of INR 10 cach filly peid-up keld by
Aster DM Heaitheare Limited, Holding and 797 7568 793 T

Ultimiate helding company

(0} Details of sharebelders hobding more fhaw 5% shares of the Compuny
Particobars As al 31 Mureh 2025 As at 30 March 2024
Number of shares %o hulding Number of shares % holding
{in trores) _{in vrores)
Aster DM Heultheare Linited 797 .15% 793 79.40%
ity Delails of sharchulding ul Promuters
Promater name Shures held as ar 31 March 2025
Nuimber of shaves i of total shares  Pereentage change during the year ended March 31, 2025
{in crores)
Aster DM Healtheare Limited 7.97 79.75% Q.35%

(N Shares reserved for issue under gptions and contracts during the year ended 3§ Mareh 2023 und 31 March 2024 Nil
() Dutaits of bunus shares Issued during the past 5 years immediately preceding 31 Mareh 2025; Nil
(h) Delails of shares issued for consideration other than for cush during Lhe past 5 years immediately preceding 31 March 2025: Nil

(1) Dctails of buyback of shares during the past 5 yeurs immediately preceding 31 Mareh 2025: Nil

15 QOther egwily As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Reserves und surplus

Seeuritigs premium 7871
- Used To record the prentium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in wecordange with the previswns
of the Companies Act, 2013,

Retaingd carnings 337387
- Retuined camnings comprises of the amounts that van be distributed by the Company as dividends W ils
cquity share holders.

Revaluation Resenve 21704

- Revaluation surplus represents [uerease o carrying wmount ansing on revaluation of L il building
recogaised in other comprehensive income wnd accurnulatesl in reserves (el ol k)

s of vther comprehensive income

Remeuswrement ol et defined benelit Jibilily/ (assel), nel of tux 0479

- Pertains 1u the remeusurement of the net deflined benelit Hability/
(assel) recognised net of tax

78.71

20138

21764

(0.16}

Total 683,73

559,54

15.

Distributluns made and proposed:

The Board of Directors, al its seeting held on 27 June 2024, have recommended o finzl divitkessd of 19% (INIU 1 put cquity share of par value ISR ach) Gaggregating
INR 9.99 crores) oul of the prolits of the Compuny {or lhe finaneial year ended 31 March 2024, Tins was subsequently approved by he sharehollers wt the Anpual General

Meeting leld on 23 Aug 2024,

-
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statentents for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

17 Trade payables

Particulars Asat Ass
31 March 2023 31 March 202

Total ouistanding dues of micro and small enterprises 3.28 6,82

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterpriscs 88.80 80.9¢

Tuetal 92,08 87.81

All trade payables are ‘current’. The average credit period taken is 30-60 days.

The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 38.

17.1 Trade payables ageing schedule
Particulars Cufstunding for fellowing perieds from due date of paynment Total
Unbilleg|  Lgsytham] 1-2 years 2=3 yeurs More thun 3 years
ducs year

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Micro and small enteeprises - 3.27 0.01 - * 32

Others 35.76 438.01 .67 0.91 2.45 ¥y.8

Total 35.76 51.28 1.68 U.91 2.45 92.0%

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Micre and small enterprises - 6.32 - 0.28 0.25 G.8S

Others 29.04 438.45 091 1.88 (6% 30.9¢

Tatal 29.04 54.77 0.91 2.16 0.93 87,81

17.2 Disclosures as required under the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Aet”) based on the information

available with the

Particulars S Aute
31 March 2025 31 March 202

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier ot the end of the year 3.28 5,74

The interest due on the principal remaining outstanding as at the end vf the year - %

The amount of interest paid under the Act, aleng with the amounts of the payment made beyond the appuinted - =

day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - 0.2y

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act

The amount of interest scerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - 11

Fhe amount of further interest remaining due ancl payable even in the sueceeding years, until such date when the -
interest dues as above are actuatly paid to the small enterprise, for (he purpose of disallowance 03 a deduclible

*This represents values less than rounding off norms adopted by the Company

Nate: The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises has issned an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Sma
Lnterprises should mention in their correspondence with s custoniers the Entreprencars Memorandum Number as allocated after tiling of the Memorandun
Accordingly, the discloswre in respect of the amounts payable 1o such enterprises as at March 31, 2025 has been made in the firancial stutements based o
information received and available with the Company. Further in view ol the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be puyable in accordance with th
provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Eaferprises Development Act, 2006 {"The MSMED Act’) is not expected to be material, The Company has ne

received any claim for interest from any supplier,

18 Other finaneial liabilities

Particulars As at
31 Mareh 2025

As 3
31 Mureh 202

Non Current

Security deposits from others 0.74 0.7
Total .74 0.74
Current

Enterest accrued but not due un borrowings™** 0.77 G.7¢
Sccurity deposits from others 1.34 .38
Dues to related party (refer Note 37) 0.86 (.54
Unclaimed dividend 1.31 0.9¢
Dues to cseditors for capital goods 26.03 28.53
Total 30.31 32,k

** The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed in Note 16.
The Company’s exposure to currency and liqquidity risk retated to the ubove financial liakilities is disclosed n Note 3%,




MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

19 Provisions

20

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As s
31 March 202

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits

Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity (refer Note 39) 14.64 12.57
Tutal 14.64 12,57
Current

Provision for emplayee benefits

Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity (refer Note 39) 1.94 1.8¢
Tolal 1.94 1.86
Other linbilities

Particulars As a4 Ass

31 March 2025

31 March 202

Non-current

Deferred government grant®
Unearned income

Total

Current

Advances from patients
Unearned income

Statutory dues payables
Delerred government grant®
Total

15.96 15.9¢
0.07 -
16.03 15.96
167 -
378 1.2
5.1 547
2.05 1.91
12.01 8.5%

*Represents goverament grant under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) aceounted at fuir value as per Ind AS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants an

Disclusure of Government Assistance.

ACCOUNTANTS )/
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Nutes 1o the financial statenients fur the year ended 31 March 2023
All srmeunts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

21

(i

(i

(ifi)

{iv)

22

24

Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ¢nded For the yeur ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from hospilal and medical services 1,030.1% 92404
Revenue from sate ol pharmacy 70.45 7231
Otlier operating income 17.41 1381
Total LLI1§.05 1,014.36

Revenye from operations includes revenue from reluted pusrties of INR 0.07 crores (21 March 2024: [INR 0.86 crores). Refer note 37,

Category of Customers

Particulars For the year ended For the yveur ended
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Cash (Including Cards/Unified Payments Interface/wallets/bank transler/Cheques} 343,02 779.54
Credit (Including CoPay} 257.02 22181
Revenug from hospital and medical services and pharmacies 1,100.64 1,006.35
Others 17.41 13.01
Revenue from Qperations 1,118.05 i,U14.36

Nature of treatment

Particulars For the year ended For the vear endwul
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Ine patient 815.79 664.22
Quit- patient 214.40 264,82
Tutul 1,030.1% 924,04

Reconciliation of revenuc recognised with the contract price is us fullows:

Healtheare serviees (Including other operating incume)

Purticulars

For the year enduwd
31 Murch 2025

Lor the yeur ended
31 March 2024

Contract price (a5 retlected in the mvaice raised on the customer us per the lerms of s34 L 0a0. 82

the vontract with customer)

Reduction in the form of discounts and disallowances (66.29) (66.46)
Reventue recognised in the stajement of profit and loss Li13.U5 LU14.30

Otler operating income

Particulars

Fur the year ended
31 Mareh 2028

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

Rental income 4.95 46l
Revenue from medic) courses 7.66 381
Revenue from consultaney services 3.5% N
Lhhers 1.22 U.88%
Toetal 17.41 13.01

Other ineome

Particulurs

For the yeur ended
31 Mareh 2428

Four the yeur cmled
31 March 2024

Interest income

on Hinancial assets camied ot umortised cost {Leuse deposits) 006 .04

on tixed deposits with banks 293 .54

on Lean 1o related piuties (Refer Note 37} 2.63 -
Dividend on non-cureent investments 0.55 0.32
Other nen-operating incone 3.46 296
Protit on sale of property. plant and equipment {net) - .05
‘Fotal .63 4.20

Furebases of medivines and medical censuwmalles

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mreh 2025

Fur the year ended
3 March 2024

vtedicines and medical consumables®

216.01

21150

Total

210.601

2i1.560

*Includes purchases of medicines and medical consunables of INR 171 crores (31 Mareh 26241 INK 2.00 crores) from related parties. Refer Note

37.

Changes in inventories

Particulars

For the year ended
3§ March 2025

For the yeur ended
31 Mareh 2024

Opening stock
Closing stock
Total

\

=\

22.57 2TFR
{241.43} (22.57)
2.14 .15

{UB5110KL 199
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Nutes 10 the financial statements for the year ended 31 Marcl 2025
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25

26

27

28

29

3t

P rofessivnal fees to consultant doctors
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Muarch 2025 31 March 2024
Prolessiona] fees (o consullant doctors 249.63 220.09
Total 244.63 21049
Lab outsourcing charpes
Purticulars For the year ended Yor the year ended
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Lab vutseurcing charges** 30.54 40.85
Total 36,54 40.85
** [neludes lab outsouscing charges to refated partics of INR 34,27 crores (31 March 2024: 39.99 crores). Refer Note 37,
Employee benefits expense
Particulars For the year coded Fuor the year ended
3L March 2025 31 March 2024
Suluries and atlowances 197.75 18180
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer Nute 39} 7.89 7.77
Staft welfare expense* ¥ 7.08 747
Expenses related to post employment defingd benefit plans {refier Note 39) 3.19 2,33
Total 215.91 199.47
sx% [neludes staff welfate expenses to rebated parties of INR 0.33 crores (31 March 2024: Nil}. Refer note 37.
Finance cost
Purticulurs For the year ended Fur the year vnded
31 Muareh 2025 31 March 2024
Iuterest on bank barrowings 072 10.14
Less @ Anounts included in the cost of qualifying assets (2.46) (.1
7.20 .04
Interest on lease tabilities (refer Note 35) 6.46 3.85
Other borrowiny costs™ L7 148
Total -—— 14.79 16.37
A [neludes other borrowing costs to related parties of Nil (3§ Murch 2024: 0.53 crores}. Refer Note 37,
Drepreciativn and amortisition
Particuluars For the year ciddeld Fur the year ended
30 March 2023 31 March 2424
Depreciation on property, plint and equipment (refer Note 4.1) Ftdd 3%.30
Depreciation on right-uf-use asseis {refer Note 35) 0.26 SKER)
Amortisalion on intangible assets (refer Note 5) 0.72 U7y
Tutal 43.42 45,11
Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mureh 2025

Fur the vear (:mh.i
31 Mareh 2024

General Censumable

Power, water and fuel

Wauter charges

Housekeeping, security and others

Lewal, protessional and other consultancy

Auditors remuneration (refer Note 34)

Rent (refer Note 353

Repairs and maintenance « plant and nrachinery
Repairs and muinterance - buitding

Repairs and maintenance - Others

Advertising and promotional

Rates and taxes

Allowances for credit losses on trade receivables (refer Note 8.3)
Provisions on other financial assets (refer Note 12)
Travelling and coavevance

Luss on sule of property, plint and equipment (net)
Net oss on account of foreign exchange fluctuations
Corporate social responsibifity (refer Nete 30013
Insurance

Cammunication

Oftice expenses

Donation and charity”

Bank Charges

Miscellancous expenses

Total

* Amount is below the rounding off norms adepted by the Company.

# Includes rent expenses to refated partics of TNR 4.68 crores (31 March 20245

- ®
2697 2521
2.60 315
440,50 3RS
.48 7.22
0210 15
10.8 772
1442 18401
1.65 215
0.3 .19
21.62 19.55
1.55 180
0.56 2.52
[T -
4.73 512
001 -
0.39 R
213 1.37
203 13y
.59 150
5.12 7.1l
.40 1.06
103 2.0
544 376
EO6.41 157,29

2-crores. [Refer aote 37).
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3t

30

3.

|

[N

Qther expenses (cuntinued)
Details of corporate social respoasibility (CSR)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mupeh 2028

Fur the year ended
31 March 2024

_ Amount required (o be spent by the Company during he year
- Amount of experliture incurred on:

Construction/acquisition of an assel

- Shortlali at the end of the yvar

- Tolal of previous year shovifall

- Reuson tor shoriull

- Nature of CSR activities

- Details of related party trunsactions

- Whether provision is maie with respeet to a lizbility incurred by entering into 2

307
2.13

NA
NA
NA

a) Promoting healthcare
including preventive healthcare
b) Promoting education

[NR 2.13 Crores (Astet MIMS
Charituble trast)

1.37
1.37

u) Promoting healtheure
including preventive healtheare
b} Promoting vdueation

[NIR 137 Crores {Aster MIMS
Charituble trust)

voniraciual wbligation Nu No
- Amount speat during the year o - -
Construglionfacquisition of an asset - -
On purpeses other than above 2.13 137
Total 2.13 1.37
Amount contributed to political party

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mureh 2025

For the year ended
30 Muarceh 2024

Contribution to political parties
~Comnumist Party of Tndia (M}
-Bharathiye Janata Party
-Indian Nativnal Congress
-Others

Tutal

= Amtount is below the rourding oftf nerms adopted by e Company.

Q.38 005
0.02 *
029 *
0.06 (.04
.75 hy




MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

31 Income tax assets {(nct}

(a) Income tax assets/{liability)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income tax payments, including taxes withheld 47.56 3116
Less: Provision made towards tax liabilities 42.68 30.27
Net income tax assets/(liability) at the end 4.88 0.89

{b) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Currenl tax 41.65 29.01
Deferred tax 1.07 (15.25)
Tax expense for the year 42.72 13.76

() Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Deferred tax
Tax expense for the year

{d) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

{011}

0.15

(0.11)

0.15

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Profit before tax 177.23 122,73
Slatutory incorne tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax expenses 44.61 30.89
Nu-deductible expenses/ permanent differences 113 0.70
Deduction under Sec 80JJAA (0.54) -
Others (2.4%) (17.83;
Income tax expense 42.72 13.76
{¢) Reeognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to thie following:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Deferred tax asset

Allpwances for credit losses 2.59 2.44
Provision for employee benetis 4.08 3.78
On account of ROU and lease labilities 2.23 L4
Others - 0.92
Total deferred tax asset 9.50 8.28
Deferved tax liabifity
On aceount of fuir valuation of land * 3142 32.78
Excess of depreciation on propesty, plant and equipment under Income Tax Act, 1961 aver 37.05 33.81
depreciation under Companies Act.
Total deferred tax Lability 68.77 6.59
Deferred tax asset / (liability) {net) {59.27) (58.31)

* The deferred tax lisbility arising on the fair valuation recognised based on tax rates applicable to the long-term capital gains.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and liabilitics it and only it'it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same taxation autherity and the Company intends to settle its current tux assets and liabilitics on a

net basis.

CHARTERED
ACGOUNTANTS




MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

31 Income tax assets (net) (continued)
(i) Movement in temparary differences

Particulars

Recugnised in

Balances as at thrl:::zzg:::;i(:md Profit and loss  Recognise in OCI Balances as at
01 April 2024 e:rnings during during 2024-25 31 Mareh 2025
2024-25

Allowances tor credit losses 2,44 - 0.1s 2.59
Provision for employee benefils 378 - 1.01 {1h) 4.63
On account of ROU and lease labilities 1.14 - 1.09 - 2.23
On account of fair valuation of land * (32.78) - 1.66 5 (31.12)
Excess of depreciation on property, plant (33.81) - (3.84} - (37.05)
and cquipment under Income Tax Act,
1964 over depreciation under Companies
Act.
Others 0.92 - (0.92) - -
Net deferred tax labilities (58.31) - {0.85) (0.11) (39.27)
Particulars Recognised Recognised in

Balances as at
1 April 2023

through retained

Profit and loss

Recoguise in OCI
during 2023-24

Balances as at
31 March 2024

carnings during 2023-24

Allowances for credit Josses 1.81 - 0.63 2.44
Provision Tor cmployee benefits 2.8% - 0.75 0.15 378
Deferred government grant 4.04 - (4.04) - -
Luase linbilities 1.82 - {0.68} - 1.i4
On aceount of fair valuation land * (50.48) - 17.70 - (32.78)
Excess of deprecintion on fixed asset {34.70) - 0.89 - (33.81)
under Income Tax  Act, 1961 over
depreciation under Companies Acl.
Others (.92 - - - .92

Net deterred tax liabilities (73.71) - 15.25 0.15 (58.31)

¥ The deferred tax Lability arising on the fair valwation is recugnised based on tax rates applicable o the long-term capital gains.

(iii) Tax losses carried forw ard

Particulars
) Balances as at

31 Mareh 2025 B ot

31 Marceh 2025

Deferred tax asset

Balances as at
31 Mareh 2024

Deferred tax asset
as at
31 parch 2024

Expiry date

Various dates from
2026-27 o 2031-32
(31 March 2024 .

Bronght torward losses 12.11 - 10.01 - Various dates fram
2026-27 w 2030-
2031)

Total tax losses carried forwvard 12.11 - 10.01 -

(iv) Unrecognised deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the foliowing ilems, because it is not pro

against which the Company can use the benetits there from:

hable thut future taxable profit will be available

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Gross amount

Unrecognised

Gross amount

Unrecognised tax

tax effeet effeet
Deferred tux asset
Tax losses (long term capital loss) 1.73 19.01 2.29
Total deferred tax asset 1.73 10,01 229

'-"""'\-.
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Noutes ty the financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

32 Contingent Tiabilities and commitnients
Particulars Asat As at
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2024

Contingent linbilitics

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt (refer Note {I) and (g) below) 11.03 10.70

Disputed income tax demand pending before assessing authoritics (refer Note (a) below) 0.2¢ 0.29

Disputed provident furd demand pending before appellate authoritics (refer Note (b) below) 142 14z

Bank guarantee (refer Note (3) below) 12.46 13,52

Letter of credit (refer Note (k) below) - 0.80

Employce bonus {refer Note (¢} below} P61 Lol

Additional salary payable urxler minimem wages act for retrospective periods {refer Note (d} below) 10.30 10,30
Expurt commitment under Export Promotion Capitul Goods (EPCG) claim (refer Noie {e) beiow) 16.09 23.02

Congnitments

Estimated mmount of conlracts renining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for 6598 3001

(reter Note (h) below )

w) [n the prior yeass, the Company had received income tax demand for INR 0.19 erores for assessenient year 2006-U7 which is curzently pending with Income
Tax Appelate Tribunal (ITAT), and for AY, 201718, the Company has recetved an income tux demand for INR 4,10 crores, which is currently pending with
CIT {Appuals).

1) The Compuny hag received demand from the provident fund suthorities wherein demand of INR 1142 grores (out of which INR .48 crores has been paid).
Munagement believes that the posilion taken by it on the muttter is fenable and hence, no adjustment has been made to the finuncial statements, The Company s
filed an appeal agauinst the demands reecived.

) Employce bonus refers to amount payable to employees as per Pauyment of Bonus {Amendiment) Act 201 5 vig-i-vis retrospective application trom b April 2014
10 31 March 2015, Company bos relied on stay petition granted by the Honourable High Court off Keralu and Honourable High Court Madrus agunst
retrospective application of Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act 2015 from | April 2014. Peading dispusal of the case, no provision has been made in the buoks
of aceounts. The Company has oblaingd an independuent kegal opinion in support of this.

d) On 23 April 2018, The Government of Kerala issucd an order revising the mininum wages of medical and nursing staff. The order mentions that the changes
would be effeetive retrospectively frum | Qctober 2017 Since the legislution was issued in April 2018, management has started paying the revised salary with
celfeet from | April 2018 The Company filed an appeal against the retrospective application ol this order with the High Court of Kerala which has issued an
interim stay order on 26 July 2018 The Writ Petition WP (¢) No 251092018 chullenging the retrospective effeet of minimwn wage order passed by the
Government of Kerala is pending before the Hun'ble 1ligh Court of Keralu in hearing list. Bused an the stay order and legal advise, manugement believes thit
their position will be upheld and therefore has not provided for the iniemental cost for the period October 2017 o March 2018,

) The Company has oblained duty fres / concessional duty liceases tor import ol capital goods by undertaking export vbligations under the FIFCG scheme, As at
31 March 2025, levies relating to export obligations remaining o be fultilled amuunts  INR 16.09 Crore {31 Mareh 2024; INR 23,02 Crore). In the event that
export sbligations arg not fulfilled, the Compeny would be liable 1 pay the levies. The Company’s bankers have provided bk guarantees aggregating INR 12,37
Crore {31 March 2024: INR 13.49 Crore) to the customs authoritivs in this regard.

t) There are cortain clims taiscd by various customers and vendors, pending belore sarivus consumer forums. The Managemant dous Rot expeet i autcom of
the action te have a material efteet on its financial position.

@) The Company las reviewed all its pending litigations and has disclosed the same as contingent liability where applicuble, in its financial stalcinemits, The

Company does tot expect the outcurme of these proceedings W have a miterially adve effect on ity Hnancial position,

h} The Company does nol lave any fong-term commitnents or material non-canceliable contractual commitmentsfcantragts, including derivative cuntraets lor
which there were any materkal forcsecable fosses other than disclosed in the finanwial statements.

i} On 28 Febiuary 2019, the Hon'bie Supreme Court of Tndiu hus delivered o judgnient elanifying the prineiples that need be applicd m determiug the
compunents of safaries and wages on which Provident Fund (PF) contributicus need to be made by establishments. Busis thiy judgment, she Company has re-
computed its Jiability towards PF from the month of March 2019 and has paid P as per Supreme Court judgement. In respect o the carlier periods/years, the
re muterous interprelative challenges oa the application of the judgment wetrospectively. Based vnsueh gl

Comypany has been legaily advised that there
advice, the Management believes that it s imipr:
siade fewards the same. Necessary adjustments, if any, will be made Lo the bueks as more ¢ty emerges on this subject.

ticuble at this stage to reliably nwssure the provision required, i uny, and accordingly, oo provision s been

) Bank guarantee is issucd by various bankees on behalfof the Company with respecet lo its commitnwent 1 various pactivs,
k) Letter ol eredit is issued by varfous bankers on behulf of the Compuny to forvign vendors with respeet to various internationul trade viz.. Capital assot
procurenment.

33 Earnings per share
A. Basic earnings per share
The valeulation of profit attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose ol busic carnings per
share caleulations are as follows:
i) Net prafit_attributable to equity shure holders {basic)

Farticulars Fur the year ended  For the year ended
31 Muarch 2025 31 March 2024
Nt pralit for the year, aitributable w the equity share holders 134.51 1897

il) Weighted 2verage number of equity shares {basic)

Particulars For the year eoded  For the year ended
3§ March 2025 30 Mageh 2024
Opening balance (Refer Note 14) Q.44 9.9
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each for the year 9.9¢ 2.99
Earnings pet share, basis 13.46 1091

CHARTERED \°
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Notes to the financinl statements fur the year ended 31 Mareh 2025
All ameunts in INR crores, unless ctherwise stated

33 Earnings per share (continued)
B. Diluted varnings per share

The calculation of profit attributable 1o equity share holders und weighted average number of equity shares outstunding, afler udjastment for the cffects of ull

dilutive potential cquity shares is as follows:

i) Nut profit attributable tu equity share holders diluted

Particulars

Fuir the yeur ended
31 Murch 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Net profit for the year, anributable to the equity shace holdgrs

134.51

108,97

ii) Weighited averape number of equity shaves (diluted)

Partiulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Weighled average numbcer of equity shaies of INR 10 cach for the year (dituted}
Eanings per share, diluted

g9y
13.46

.99
10.91

34 Payment to auditors (net of geods and servlee tux)

Particulars

For the year ended
3L Maurch 2025

For the year ¢nded
31 Muarch 2024

For statutory audil
Tuotal

u.21

013

0.2f

0,15

35 Leases

The Company has taken land and building on lease from various partics for stall secommodation and for rendering healtheure and management services. The
leases Lypieally run for i period of | yeur - 61 years, Lease payments are rencyotiated nearing the expiry to reflect market rentuls.

(i) Lease tabilitios

Following are the vhanges in the lease liubilitiey tor the yearcnded 31 Mareh 2025 and 31 March 2024

Parliculurs Asul As al
31 Narch 2015 31 Murch 2024
Opening balance 72t 4814
Additions / modifications to Iease liabilitics 5.17 2843
Finanee vost acerued during the period (refer Note 28) G40 585
Paymenat of lease Liabilitics (4.15) {4.05}
Closing balance 73,29 72.81
Mon-current fense liabilitics 71.82 G69.86
Current Lease liabilitics 347 2495
(i) Maturity analysts — contractuad undisconnted cash flows
Particulurs Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 Mureh 2024
Lesy than vne yoar EAR #0353
One te five yewrs R 3042
More than five years 154.27 153,44
Total undiscounted tease liabilitics LY3.0Y 1YE5I1
ti7) Right-vf-use assets
Particulars As ub Asal

31 March 2025

3L March 2424

Gruoss carryiog value

Opeaing bulanee %9.97 63.71
Addition / modilicalion to right-vf-use assets 5.29 2020
Total gross carrying value 9¥3.20 $9.97
Accumulated Depreciation
Cpening balance palcs )] 15.30
Depreciation fur the year (Refor Note 29) 0.20 0.03
Total accumulated Depreciation 27.59 21.33
657.07 8.4

Net Bulunce

fiv} Amownts recognived in stafenrent of profit or foss

Purticulars

For the year ciided
31 March 2025

For the year cnded
31 Marel 2024

Lease rentd expenses for lease where Ind AS 116 is not applicable {refer Note 30)

Interest un lease labilities (pefer Note 28)
Deprecialion on sight-of-use ussels (refer Note 293

101
040
6.20

7.2
3RS

603

(v} Antvunds recognised i stutement of cash fluwy

Particulars

FFor the year ended
31 Murch 2025

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

Tulal cash out Hlew for leases

Y.15

Y.u5

36 Scgmental reporting

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segmem” (*Ind AS 1087) estublishes standards for (ke way that public busiuess enterprises report infurmativn ubout vperating segaeats
aud related disclusires abott products and services, geographic areas, and majur customers. Bused on the “numagement approueh™ s detlued i nd AS 108,
Operating segments are W be repencd in 4 manner consistent with the intermal reporting provided to the Clief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM" ). Muambers
of Buard of the Company have beca identified us the CODM as defined by Ind AS 108 "Operiting Segments”, The CODM cvaluates the Company's performunee

: - 1 «Medical and Healtheare Services'. Accordingly, theee e no

additiunal disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than Those :
The Company's busiacss primarily falls within 2 single geographzcal «
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Notes to the financial staterments for the yeur ended 31 March 2025
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37
(i)
@
(b}
()
«h

6]

B

(2)

A. Related partics (a5 per Ind AS)

Names of related partics and description of relationship with the Company:

He

Iding company

Substdiary
Subsidiary
Associatc Company

Fel

low subsidiarics

Key managerial parsonnel and relutives

Dr,

Mandayapurath Azad Moopen

Dr. M Ali

My
Dy
Mr.
M.
Mr
Ms
Mr
Ms

M,

Mr
Mr
Dr.
Mir
Mr
M
hS

I

. Busheer
Lamza P M
. Arjun Vijaykumae
. Deepak Xavier
. Aby Epen
. Radhakrishnan Anupama
. Rashid Astam Bin Mohideen Mammu Haji
. Zeba Azad Moopen
Kartholiparamba Abdurahman
. Moolakkadath Salahuddin
. Kazia Mohammed [smail
Azhumalathil Abdulrahiman Salim
. Thadathil Joscph Wilson
 Sharfulddeen Valiyapeedika Valiyapeedika Kandy
. Ahamed Moopan Mandayapurath
- Maniedath Madbavan Nambiar

Mr. Anoop Moopen

Linterprises over which Key M

Aster MIMS Charitable Trust

Aster MIMS Research Foundation
Greattand Heahheare Private Lid

13 Educativn and Research Faundation
[3r.Moopens Healtheare Management Services LLC, UAE (w.c.f. 4 April 2024)*

Al

*Represents businesses disposed off

ent

Ralfah Hospitad LLC, Oman (w.e.f 4 April 2024

ities wee b 4 April 2024,

pSKIvS
% a{&\\

CHARTERED |7
ACCDUNTANT®

*
&FNG At

QELOJ'T)-

as discontinued operations by holding company on 03 April 2024, lowes er promoter

Aster DM Healtheare Limited, India

Ezhimala Infrastructure LLP, india

Cantown Infra Developers LLP

MIMS [nfrastructure and Properties Privite Limited, India

DM Medcity Hospitals India Private Limited, Tndia

Aster Clinical Labs LLP. India

Dr.Moopens Healtheare Monagement Services LLC, UAE (upto 3 Aprii 2024}
Al Raffah Hospitak LLC, Oman (upto 3 April 2024)*

Aster DM Multispecinity Hospital Private Limited

(Tormerly known as Aster DM Healtheare (Trivandram) Private Limited)
Hindustan Pharma Distributors Private Limited

Chairman

Viee cluirman

Director

Whele time director

Chicef Finaneial Officer (upto 14 August, 2024)
Chief Financial Ofticer (w.e.t' ] November, 2024)
Company Seeretary { upte 14 Juae, 2023)
Company Seeretary

Directar

Director

Divector

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Iirector

Director (w.e.t. 14 Qctober, 2023}

Director (w.e.f. 19 December, 2024)

anagement Personnel are able o exercise significant influence

has significant mfluence over these
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fii}  Related party transactions:
The Company has entered into the following transactions with related partics during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Volume of transactions Outstanding balance
SL.No. |Name of related party Description of the transaction Ry ﬂ:;" )I’cﬂr ken th;" L}I‘wr As at As at
ended ende
March 2 arch 2
31 Mareh 2025 | 31 Mareh 2024 |1 Vareh 2025 | 31 March 2024
Rental expenses 1.44 1.13 0.12 -
I |Bashee S
s Rent doposit paid U8 i 025 018
2 |Dr.Hamza. P M Short term employce benetits paid 0.09 0.05 0.01 -
3 |Arjun Vijayakumar Shert terin employee benelits paid 0.22 0.54 - -
4 |Mr. Deepak Xavier Shert ternin employee benefits paid 0.27 - 0.03 -
5 |Radbakrishnan Ampama Sabaries, wages and bonus paid 0,12 0.07 0.01 -
6 |Aby Eapen Salaries, wages and benus piid - 0.02 - -
Expenses reimbursement {Liability) 13.34 7.10 0.87
HIRM Expenses as por ATH
- Aster DM 0.60 12,87 1.04
Revenue for MIMS & Expense for
7 |Aster DM Healtheare Limited Aster DM e 0.86 021 687
Dividend paid 7.4 788 -
Purchase of Medicine .01 - -
Corporate guariniee commission
(Liability) ) e A
; L - N Expenses incurred by the Compuny/
3 I[).M .ll\fl;duty HospialsindigiRrivate {incurred on behalf of the Company) ) 061 L 0.9
dmite :
e StafT training expense 0.33 -
Al - 3 > o g
9 M?MS in.ila.stmclurc and Properties Dividend received 0.55 03 ) :
Private Limited
Dr.Muoopens Healtheare Collection by related party on behatf of!
: . . i L} 2
it Management Services LLC, Dubai  |Compuny . et i Ll
1y AL Raffuh Hospital LLC, Oman Expenses reimbursement - - G.80 0.80
Rent panid 0.03 0.03 .06 (.02
12 |[Exhimala Infrastructure LEP Expense reimbursement (Linbility) - .02 ; 0.1l
Seeurity deposit paid - - 0.02 0.2
Rent Paid 1o Subsidiary 0.63 0.60 U.0s .06
14 |Cantown Intra Developers LLP hsvestment - Y.28 24.51 24510
Scewrity deposit paid - - 0.2 0.02
aiting or rendering ot ¢ ervices-
Availing or n,n.dumt,u. Ly services 1167 3712 051 o
Laboratory testing services
15 [Aster Clinical Lab LLP Kunt expense 0.12 0.18 - -
Sale “hase or supply of uny goods
Sale, pur.dl 15¢ or supply of any goods 008 L o1 0.0 030
or materials;
Aster DM Multispeciaity Hospital | Loans advanced 58.57 - 58.57
0 Private Limited (formerly known as
Aster DM Healtheare (Trivandum) | Interest on loan 2.063 234
Private Limited) -
Other receivables - - 0.03 (.03
j7 (Hindusthan Phagma Disteloutors e o Medicing 1,03 0.69 0.02 0.27
Private Limited |
Security deposit (Asset) o1y - G.44 6.25 l
Network Accessorics 0.21 - 0.26 )
1% |Greatland Healthcare Private Limited| lospital Operation Fee 2.46 3.48 0,38 0.51
Eleetricity charge received (.01 061 | = -
Llectical Equipment {Asset) S 0.01 -
19 [Sitting Fee 1o Directurs Sitling fue 0.46 0.43 - -
20 Lt Edu.callon aedReseaeh Other operating income 0.02 - FRAS -
Foundation
21 |Aster MIMS Research Foundation | Donations given 0.31 - - g
22 |Aster MIMS Clirttable Trust Donations / CSR given 2.13 1.37 0.02 -

* Amount is below (he rouling ot norms adopted by the Company.
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Notes to the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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B. Investnents, loans, guarantees and security

(@) The Company has made investments in the following companics:

&

Purchases year

during the year

Particulurs As at 1 April 2024 Allotment! Sold during the | Impairment/ | As at
Purchases year Write off 31 March 2025
during the year during the year

Investment in equity instruments

MIMS Infrastrueture and Propertics Private Limited 6,62 - - 6.62

Ezhimala [nfrastructure LLP 9.25 - - 4.25

Cantown Iafra Developers LLP 24.51 - - 24.51

U-Solar Asset Co Two Private Limited 4.00 7.89 - 11.89

Total 44.38 7.89 - 52.27

Investment in preference shares

MIMS Infrastructure and Propertics Private Limited 2.67 , 2.67

Totad 2.67 - - 2.67

Total investiments 47.08 7.89 | - 54.94

Particulars As at 1 April 2023 Allotment/ Sulki during the [ Impairment/  |As at

Write off

during the year

31 March 2024

investment in cquity instruments

MIMS Infastructure and Propertics Private Limited 6.62 - . 6.62
Ezhinwla Infrastructure LLP v.25 - - Y25
Cantown Infra Developers LLP 15.23 9.28 - 2451
U-Sular Asset Co Two Private Limited - 4.00 - 4.00
Lutal 3110 13.28 - 4438 |
Investment in preference shares

AIMS Infrastructure and Properties Private Limited 2.67 - - 2.07
Total 2.67 - - 2.67
‘Totul investiments 3377 13.28 47.05

The Company has advanced loans to the following companivs:

’F:u'licuturs

As at | April 2034

Advanced

during the year [the year

Repaid during

Impairment/
Write olf

during the year

As at
31 March 2025

Luoans

/\.slul' M Multispecinlty ospital Private L':n}itcd i 58,57 i .57
(furmerty known as Aster DM eallheare {Trivandrum)

Total luans - 58.57 - 54.57
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Nutes tu the finuncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All ameunts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated

38 Financisk [nstruments- Fair valugs and risk management (continued)
B Finaneisl rlsk management

The Company's uctivilics expose itto a variety of finuncial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

i} Risk management framework

Tive Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.

The Company’s board of dirccrors oversee how management monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the

adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The board of directors is assisted in its oversight role by

internal audit. Internal audit underakes both regular and ad hec reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to

the beard of dircctors and audit commitice.

ii) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not nieet its obligation under a finuncial mstrument or customer contrict, [cading to financial loss. The

credit risk arises principully from its eperating uctivities (primasily tride receivablos) and from its investing activities, including depusits with banks and

financial institutions and other Ninancial instruments.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whum credit has been prunted alter

obtaining necessary approvals for credit, The collection from the trade receivables are manilored un a continuous basis by the receivables team

The Company always measares e loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal w Lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade

receivables are estimated using @ provision matrix by reforence to past defuult expericnce of the debtors and sn analysis of the debtors’ carrent limncal

position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general cconomic conditions of the industry in which tiw debtors operate, wnd an assessmoent

of both the current s well as the foreenst direction of’ conditions at the repurting dule.

The maximum exposure to the credit sisk a1 the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables umounting w INR 20.20 crores (31 March 2024: INR

35.94 crores) (refer Note B) and unbilledd reecivables (net of advinces thom patient) amounting to INR 5.04 crores (31 Muren 202d: INR 5.09 crores)

(refer Note 12).

The movement in lifetime ECL in respeet of vrade and other reeeivables during the year was as follows:

Purliculurs yaik s
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Bulange at the beginning ot the yeur 9.71 719

Add: Provisiun of loss allowinee erewted during the year 0.56 2.52

Lalance at the end 10.27 N

o single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue s of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, There is no significant cuncentration ol credit

nsk.

Credil nsk on cash and cash cquivatent and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transagts with banks and lancial institutions with

high eredit ratings assigned by intemational and domestic credit ratiag agencics.

Hii} Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk 15 the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mieeting the obligations assuciated with its financial labilities that are settled by
delivesing cash or anether financial assel. Ultimate cesponsibility for liquidity visk nmanagement rests with the board of directors and cudit commttes,
which has established an appropriste liquidity risk management framewark for managemient of the Company’s short, medium and fong-term tunding und
liguidity managenwent requirements. The Company's approach to managing liquidily is o ensure, as far as possible, that it witl always huve satficient
Liyuidity 1o mweel its liabilities when due, under bolh normal and stressed vonditions, withoat ingurring wrageeptable Tosses or risking damage o the
Company™s reputation.

The tble below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractuad maturitivs of significint finmieiul Gabilities as of 31 Muich 2025

Pariiculars Liss than 1 year More than [ year “Total

Trude payables Y2.08 - 92.08
Nun current borrowing (ineluding cirrent maturitics) 35.25 7741 112,00
Lease liabilities g.14 18595 195,04
Other finacial Labilities 30.31 074 3L0s
Tetal 166,78 204.10 430.88

The Compuny is using the cash inflows from the finuncial sssets and the availuble bunk fucilittes to nunage the liguidity. The tuble below provides the
cash infuws from significunt Mnancial assets us of 31 Murch 2025:

Particulars Less than | year AMaore than 1 year Tulal

Cash und ¢ash vguivalents 2097 - cp.97
Bunk balunces other thae cash and cash equivalents above 42.93 - 4293
Investments - 5494 54,94
Leans - 5857 5837
Trade receivables 20.26 - 21526
Other finuncial assets 116 27.490 3912
Tatal 95.32 141.47 236.79
The taole below provides details regarding the undiscounted contructial matarities of significant finanvial liakilities 3s of 31 Muweh 2024;

Particulars Lass than 1 year Mure thun 1 year Tutal

Trade payables {780 g §7.%1
Non current borrowings {including cusreat matugity) 20,483 Y386 122,09
Lease liabilities B.65 [¥2.50 19131
Ciler financial liabilities 32.08 074 32.83
Total 133.37 279.40 43183

CHARTERED !
ACCOUNTANTS /T

UB5110KL 1995PLCOOBETT
Calicut - 673016
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38 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management {continued)

iv)

The Company is using the cash inflows from the financial assets and the available
cash inflows from significant financial assets as of 31 March 2024:

bank Gacilitics to munage the lyuidity. The table below provides the

Particulars Less than 1 year Maore than 1 year “Tutal

Cash and ¢ash cyuivalents 47.07 - 47.07
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivaients above 276 - 276
Investinents - 47.05 4705
Trade reecivables 3594 - 3544
Other financial asscts 8.67 28.51 3718
Tutal 94,44 15,50 17408

Financial assets of [NR 224,90 crores us at 31 March 2025 (166,00 crores as at 31 March 2024) is carcied at amortised cost and INR 11.89 crores as at 31
March 2025 (INR 4.00 crores us at 31 Masch 2024) is carried at FVTPL, in the form of cash and cash equivalents. deposits, cle., where the Compary has
assessed the counterparty eredit risk, Trade receivables of INR 20.26 crores s at 31 March 2025 (35.94 crores as at 31 March 2024) we carned at
amoertised cost and is valued considering provision fur allowance using expected credit loss method (if any). This ussessment is nul based wn any
mathematical wedel but an assessment considering the impact immediately scen in the demand outlouk and the finaneial strengh of e customers i
respect of whom amounts are Teceivable. The Company has specifically evaluaed the potential impact with respuect to Healtheare service sector. The
Company closely monitors its custormners who are being impacted.

Further, financial assels refated to investments in subsidiaries amounting 1o INR 43 03 crore (31 March 2024: INR 43.05 crore), and loans and wlvances
to feilow subsidiary amounting 1 INR 58.57 crores (31 March 2024: Nil), have been evaluated by mansgement for impairment,
in their assessment.

based on projections used

Markuet risk
Market risk s the visk that the fir value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will $luctuate
exchange rates, interest rates and cyuity prices.

because of changes in market prices, such us lureign

Fercign currency risk
The Company undertakes fransactivns denominated in fureign currencies; consequently,
mainly exposed to GBP, EUR , AED, OMR and US dollar.

exposures to exchange rute fluctuations arise The Company 18

The carrying imounts of the Company’s foreign gurrency denominated monetary assets and monctary labilities at the reporting dute are as fullows:

Ay al 31 March 2025 GBr FUR ALD OMR E&
Frade payubles 0.l = = E i
Other current financial Liabilitics - - - 0.80 16,04
Net assets/(Linbilitics) 0.01 - - (U.80) (16.04)
As at 31 March 2024 GBP ELR Ally MR usix
Cther cueent Tinancial Lliabilities - 0.u2 0.00 - 0.23
Other financial assels - 5 0.01 B 0.04
Net assels/{Habilities) - (.02) u.ul - (0.19)
Sensiliyily analysis

The sersitivily of profit or loss t changes in exchange rtes urises nainly tfrom foreign cunency denominated financial instruments, Chwe pee cenl s the

sensitivity rate used when reporting foreiga carency sk internally & key management persoanel and represents ke ent's wsaessment ol e

reanomibly possible chavge in (ureign exehange rules. Thy seasilivity analysis imnclades only outstanding forcign ctirrency denuminated munatary ilems

sind adjusis their transtation at the yeae-cad for a one per cent ehange in forign carnency stes, A positive number below indivates inergise i prolit
wid other cauity where currency enits strengthens vle per cent ag

et the relevint curreney. For o one per cent weitkening o encreney unils agiinst the
elevant curreney, there would bea comparable impact on 1he profil and other eguity, amd the bilunees peivw would be negative,

Particulars Lnpact on profit er (fuss)
Asat

31 March 2025

Tmipact un cyuity, Bt al Lix
Asat
31 March 2025

As ak
31 Mareh 2024

As b
31 March 2024

GBP Sensitivity

INR/ GRE - Invrase by 1% * - . -
INR/ GBP - Decrease by 1% # - hud -
ELR Sensitivity

INR/ EUR - [nerease by 1% - b - ba
INR/ EUR - Decrease by 1% B i - o
ALD Sensitivily

INR AL - Increass by 1% - b - *
INR' ALD - Decrease by 1% B * - *

OMR Sensitivity

INR: MR - Increase by 1% (001} - {u.ol) -
INR/ OMR - Decrease by 1% 0ol - 0.1 -
USD Scasitivity

INR/ USD - Increase by [% (G.17) ¥ 0.17) Z
INKR USD - Decreuse by 1% 0.17 K 17 5

* Anount i below the 1ounding o ff norms adupted by the Compary.
As per puidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBD, the Company s requured to realise toreign currency receivables within stipulated tme
perivd. The Company has net foreign cirensy payables ameunting to INR 4.24 crores (51 Mareh 2024 019 erores) which are cutstuading Tor a period ol

riore Uin nine mentis. The Cempany believes that the management will be able to obtain approval, it applicuble, from the authoribes realising such

amounly
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Notes to the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 Muarch 2025
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3% Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued)
v} Inferest rate risk

¥i)

The Company is cxposed to interest rte risk becuuse the Company borrows funds at floating interest rates. The Company's signilicant interest rite risk
arises from long-term borrowings with vasiable interest rates, which expose the Company to cash low interest rate risk. The interest rate on 1he
Comgany’s finanvial instruments is based on market rates. The Company monitars the movement in interest rates on an engoing basis, The risk is
managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrewings,

The exposure of the Company's bottowing to intercst rate changes at the ¢nd of the reporting period are as follows!

. ETTIWITe . As ut Agat
Financial lYiabilities (bank borrowings) 41 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rate long term borrowing including current matwrities and overdraft 112,66 122.04
Sensitivity anulysiy

Tupact un profit Impact on eguity, net of tas
Particulars As at As at As at Asat
31 Murch 2023 30 March 2024 31 Murcl 2025 31 Murch 2024

Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR rate 113 123 113 1.23
1% decreuse in MCLR rate .13} (1.23) N (1.23)

The analysis is prepared asswming the amount of Liability vutstanding at the repurting date wits outsianding for the whole year. A vnie per cent increase of
decrense is used when ceperting inlerest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents nuwagement’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The Company's sensilivity to interesl rates s decreased in the varrent year due to the repayment of variuble rate long
term burrowings during the year,

Equity price risk

The Company is exposed to price risks arising from investents in cquity share, The Company’s investiment are held strategivally ruther than for trading
pl.ll'pl)bl.‘.

CHARTERED
AGCOUNTANTS )™
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39
A

Employee benelits

The Company has a unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (*Gratuity Act’). Under the Gratuity
Act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific berefit. The gratuity benefit provides for a lump sum payment
to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on tarmination of employnint of an amount gquivalent to 15/ 26 days’
salary payable for each completed year of service. The yeatuity obligation is recognized subject to a maximuen timit of INR 20,00,000, as

prescribed under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

Based on an actuarial valuation, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s

financial statenients as at balkmee sheet date:

Particulirs As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Delined benefit obligation lability 16.58 14.43
Plan ussets - -
Net defined benefit diability i0.58 14.43
Current 1.94 1.56
Non-current 14.04 12.57
Reconciliation of present vilue of defined benefit olligation
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at beginaing ef the year 14.43 11.43
Benefit paid (1.40) {0.80)
Current service cost 2.18 1.98
Pust service cost - -
Interest cost 1.0t 085
Actuarial (gain)’ loss recognised in other comprehensive income
-changes in demographic assumptions - -
- chianges in financial assumptions 0.72 0.25
- experience adjustments (0.30) 0.36
Transfer in/{out) - .
Ralance at the end of the year 16.58 1443
Net defined benetit (iability) 16,58 14.43

(i) Expenses recognised in statement of profit and Joss

Particulars For the year ended

31 plareh 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Carrent service cost 218 194
Interest cost 1.01 .85
Gratuity cost 3.19 2.83

(iiy Remensurements recognised in vther comprehensive income

Particutars For the year ended For the year ¢nded

31 March 2025 3 March 2024
Actuarial gain/(loss) on delined benetit obligation {0.42) (0.01)
Remegsurements recognised in other comprehensive income (0.42) Ww.e!)

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS




MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in TNR ¢rores, unless otherwise stated

3% Employee benefits (centinued)
D Actuarial valuation

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the reluted curvent service cost and past service cosl, were measured using the
projected unit credit method. The defined benefit plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest rate sisk, longevity
risk and salary risk.

Tnterest rate risk A decrease in the bond interest rutg will increase the plan liubility.

Longevity risk The present value of the deflned benefit plan lidbility is caleulated by reference 1o the best estimate of the
morlality of plan participunts both during and sfter their employment. An increuse in the life expeectancy of

the plun participants will increase the plan’s Tiubifity.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit pln Hability is caleutated by refrence tw the luture salaries of plan

participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plun participants will increase the plan’s liability.

(i) Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporling date (expressed us weighted average):

articulars For the year ended|  For the year ended
31 Marceh 2425 31 Margh 2024

Discount rate 6.30% 7.00%
Future salary growth 5.00% 5.00%
Below 35 years - 35%)] Below 33 years @ 35%

Er R— Pt Pt
Attrition rate 35 yrs. & above 1 3%| 35 yrs. & above : 3%

P it |

Muortality rate IALM 2012-14 (Uli)]  JALM 2012-14 (UlL)
Weighted average duration of detined benedit obligation 8 yours 3 yers
Retirement 60} yoars 5

Assumptions regarding foture mortality experience are set in accordance with the published statistivs by the [ndian Assured Lives Mortality
(ALM).

“The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevaient industry standards. The discount rate s
based on the government securitics yield.

Gratuity is applicable only to empleyees drawing o sulary in Iudian rupyes.

(i) Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial sssumptivns for the determination of the defined benelit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increuse and
withdrawal rate. Reasonably possible changes at the reperting date to une of the actuarial assumplions, holding other assumplions censtant,
would have afTeeted the delined benetit obligation by the wmounts shown below

Particulars Yor the year ended FFor the year ended
31 March 20425 31 March 2024
lngrease Decrease Liereuse Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (1.39) 1.63 {1.17) 1.37
Futuee salary growth (1% movement) 1.64 (1.43) 1.38 {1.20)
Withdrawal rate {1% movement} 0,10 {0.12) .15 (0.17)

“The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it 1s wnlikely that
the changes in asswnptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumplions muy be correlated In presenting the above
sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been culeulated using the projected unit eredit methed at the end
of the reporting period, which is the same as that applicd in caleulating the defined benelit obligation lability recognised in the balunce
sheel, There was no change in the methods and assumplions used in prepaving the sensilivity analysis from prior years.

Defined contribution plan

Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss For the year vnded for the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contribution 1o provident fund {refer Note 27) 7.67 749
Employee state insurance {refer Note 27) 0.22 0.28
Compunents recognised in the statement of profit and loss 789 it
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED

Nutes te the finanelal statements for the year eaded 31 Mareh 2025
All amounts in INR ¢rores, unless othenwise stated

Company everview

Malabur Instituie of Medical Scicnces Limited (“the Company™) was incarporated on 17 February 1995 as a limited company. The registered office of the Company
is located at Mini Bypass Road, Gevindupuram, Calicut, Kerala,

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering hiealtheare services, The holding company 1s Aster DM Healtheare Limited. India,

Basis of preparation

Statenwent of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {“Ind AS™) as per the Companivs ([ndian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, and the relevant amended rules preseribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act'), read with relevant rules issucd
thereunder.

Pursuant to Rale & of the Companies (Acceunts) Rules, 2034 (Amended Rules), the Company has not presented consoiidated financial statements as its Parent
Company {Aster DM Healthcare Limited) 3s incorporated in [ndia and presenting the consolidated financial statements as required by the Companies Act, 2013,
These financial statements were authorised for issuc by the Company’s Board of Dircctors on 14 May 20235.

Details of the Company’s material accounting podicics are ncluded in Note 3,

Funstional and presentation currepey
These financial statements are presented in Endian Rupees (INR), which is alse the Company’s functional currency. All amounts @re presented in Inclian Rupees in
crores, unless etherwise stuted.

Basls of mensurement
The finunciul stalements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the fellowing material items that have been measured at fair vulue as required by
relevant Ind AS:

i. Certain financial assets and liabilitics (including derivatives struments),

ii. Liabilitics for equity-seuled share-based payment arrangements; and

iii. Net defined benefit (asset)/ Liability.

Use of estimates and jndgements

In prepating these financial statements, the Management bas made judgements, cstimates and assumptions that affeet the applivation of ugeounting policics and the
reperted amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results nay differ fron: these cstinuales,

Estimates and underlying assurmnptions are reviewed by the Managerent on ant ongoing busis. Revistons to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Infermation about judgements, asssmptions and estimation uncerlainties thut have a significant risk of resulting in a materiul adjustiment during the year ended 31
March 2025 is included in the following notes:

_Nate 3.1, 4.1,4.2 and 5 - Measurement of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

- Note 3.4 and 6 - Impairment of investment in subsidiary and assoviate;

- Note 3.11 and 31 - Recognition of deferred tax assct: availability of fiuture taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;

- Mole 3.6 and 32 - Recognition and measurement of pravisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;
- Note 3.9 and 35 - Leases:

- Note 3.4, 8, 12 and 38 - Impaimuent of finuncial asscts;

- Note 3.5, 19 and 39 - Measurement of detined benefit obligations: key ctuarial assumplions;

Measurement of [air values

A number of the Company's accuunting policics and disclosures require the measurement of fair vilues, for both financial aud non-financial assets and hatmlines. The
Company has an ¢stablished control framewerk with respest to the measurement of air values.

Fair values are cotegorised into different levels in a Fair vidue hivrarchy bused v the inputs used in the vaduativn teehnigues as follows:

- Level 1 quated prices (unadjusted) ir aetive markets for identical asscts or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prives included in Level T that are abservable for the asset or liability, either divectly (1., s prices) or mdiregly (e, derived
from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or Rability thut are not based on obscrvable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fir value of an asset or o liability, the Compuny uses vbservable market dataas far as possible. 1f the inputs used to messure the fuir valus of an
asset or & liability fall into different Levels of the fiir value hicrarchy, then the fuir value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the sum level of the Ror value
hicrarchy as the lowest Eevel input that is significant to the entire meusurement.

The Company recugnises transfers between levels of the fair value hiemrchy at the end of the repurting period during which the change has veenrred
Further infurmation about the gssumptivns made in measuring fuir values is included in he foltowing notes:

- Nolg 3% - Finangial instruments;

- Nute 4.1 - Fuir valug of property, plant and cquipment wnd intangible assets.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affuirs (“MCA”} notifies new stundards or amendments to the existing standurds uader Compunies (indian Accountimg Standards)y Rudes as
issued from time te time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has nottied Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts and amendments t [l As 1l - Leuses,
relating to salc and lease back transactions, apphicable frorm April |, 224, The Company his assessed that there is no sigmiticant inpact un its finunvial statements,
On May 9, 2023, MCA notifics the amendients to Ind AS 21 - Eifeets of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. Thesc amendments aim to provide clearer guidance un
assessing eurrency exchangeability and cstimating exchange rates when currencics are not reudify exchangeable. The amendments are clfective lor annual periods
beginning on or afler April [, 2025, The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its financid statements

CHARTERED \©
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MALABAR INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements For the yeor ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INE crorcs, unless otherwise stated

43 Additional disclosures

W) The Company dues not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Compuny tor holding any Benami praperty during wul as at 31 March 2025 angd
31 March 2024 (‘the reporting periods’).

b} The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Piant and Equipment {including Right-01-Usc Assets) durug the year.
¢) The Cornpany has not traded / invested in Crypto cumreney during the reporting periods.

&) The Company does ot have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyord the statutory period as at the repotting periods excepl for certain instances
where the Company is in tiw process of filing for satisfaction of charge for the loans which have been closed on or before 31 Murch 2025,

¢} The Company has not advasced or loaned or invested fonds during the reporting periods to any other person(s) or entitylies), inchuling foreign eatities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermudiagy shall:
(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identilied it any munner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Benelicianes) or
{3y provide any guarautee, security or the Ike to oron behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries.

[ Che Company has not received any fund during the reporting perieds from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities ( Funding Pary) with the understanding {whuther secorded in wrinhing
or utherwise) that the Company shall:
(i) directly or indiseetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalt of the Funding Pary {Ultimate Beneticiaries} or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on ehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

g} The Company has nw such transaetion which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the reporting periods (o Ui tax assessments uader the
Income Tux Act, 1961 (such as, search ar survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1901).

h) The Company hias not granted any loans or advanees in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs or selated paitics (as defined under Companies Act, 20133 except as disclosed in note (i)
below, either severally or jointly with any other persun that are:
(i} repayable on demand; or
(i1 without specilying any terms or period of repayment,

i) The Company has granted loan 1o below mentioned related party {reter Note 37) for business purpose which 15 repiyable on demand at rate of interest ranging between 8509 to 8.87% (31 hMuch
2024 Nil)
{i) Aster DM Muttispecialty Hospital Private Limited {formerly known as Aster M Dealtheare {Trivandrum) Private Limited) : INR 58.57 crores (31 March 2025 Nil).

j) The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or Ginaagial institwtion (as defincd under the Companies Act, 2013) or consurlivm theres! or viher lender in accordance with Lhe
suidelines on williul defaulters issued by the Resenve Bank of India.

k) The Company has complicd with the number of layers for its holding in dowastream compunies prescribed under clause (87} of Sectivn 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Compranies
{Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

ty As per the requirement of the rule 3(1) of the Compauies (Accounts) Rules, 2044, the Company uses only such accounbing sofivares for maintainmg 1s books of account (et dve o feature of
recording awdit irail of each and every transaction creating un edit log of each change e in the bouks ofuccount. Thus testure of recording the audit il hus opetted throughout the yeur and vas
nol lumpered with during the year.

Additionalty audit teail has been preserved by the Company as per 1he statutory requirements for record retention,

o and on behalt of the Buard off Directors ui’
MALABARINSTIIL L EDLCAL SCIE
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